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Corporate Information
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE
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Financial Highlights
MBRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
first annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we continued to be a
leading construction services provider based in Fujian Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") which specialises in offering
one-stop solutions in foundation works. Our competitive advantage
remains on our ability to manage and execute construction works
projects on a timely and reliable manner. With an experienced
management team, in-house R&D capabilities, large fleet of
construction machinery and equipment, and production base, we
have established ourselves as a leading operator and service
provider in the foundation works market in both Fujian Province and
the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHE

HKE X

EEBXEM

Our overall revenue has increased by approximately RMB385.5
million from approximately RMB1,192.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB1,578.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Attributable to the continuous effort of
the management and our staff, we recorded net profit of
approximately RMB179.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB140.5 million).

The shares of the Company were successfully listed (the “Listing”) on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 18 March 2020 (the “Listing Date”). The Listing
on the Stock Exchange marked a significant milestone in our
strategic development and was a significant recognition of the
Company’s solid track record. The Listing also improved our capital
structure to provide the Company with an efficient platform for
capital raising. With the proceeds from the offering, the Company
will be able to capture greater opportunities in its future
development and bring value to the shareholders.

Looking forward, the Group will pay close attention to the changes in
the market conditions, continue to act in a customer-oriented
manner and to maximise shareholders’ value.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, subcontractors and suppliers for their
continuous confidence and support. | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere thanks to our management and
staff members for their hard work to the Group.

Mr. Xun Minghong
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian, 26 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we continued to be a
leading construction services provider based in Fujian Province, the
PRC which specialises in offering one-stop solutions in foundation
works. Our business mainly covers foundation works (including
bored piles, H-piles, Larssen sheet piles, diaphragm walls and
tunnelling works). To complement our foundation works service, we
also provide a wide spectrum of other construction services
including (i) formwork and scaffolding works (including formwork and
falsework design, manufacturing of scaffold and erection services);
(i) construction of sewage treatment infrastructure; and (i) other
construction works (mainly E&M engineering works). We also have an
extensive fleet of construction machinery and equipment, which
enables us to handle complicated and/or sizable construction works,
thus allowing us to capture more opportunities in the construction
market and engage in construction machinery, equipment and tools
leasing services. We also operate a sewage treatment plant and
engage in the sales of construction materials and equipment and
others. We developed as a regional foundation works service
provider in Fujian Province and have further extended our footprint
across a number of provinces in the PRC.

Our competitive advantage remains on our ability to manage and
execute construction works projects on a timely and reliable
manner. With an experienced management team, in-house R&D
capabilities, large fleet of construction machinery and equipment,
and production base, we have established ourselves as a leading
operator and service provider in the foundation works market in both
Fujian Province and the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we have been awarded
with 118 new construction projects with a total contract sum of
approximately RMB1,203.4 million; and had completed 124
construction works projects with a total contract sum of
approximately RMB1,138.9 million. As at 31 December 2019, we had
135 projects on hand (including projects in progress and projects
which were awarded to us but have yet to commence) with an
outstanding contract value to be completed of approximately
RMB977.5 million.

PROSPECTS

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2020. The Directors
believe that the Listing would enhance the Group'’s profile and bring
a positive effect on the Group’s business opportunities in the
market. Moreover, the net proceeds from the Listing would provide
the Group with the capital necessary for carrying out its long-term
development plan and support the growth of the Group.

8 Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019

E¥ )

HE2019F12A3MHIEFE  RMEENX A
—REALEERBRER BB AFRHE
2L EFRHEmETREN R A% -
BRANEBTEaEMETRE (BEELE
HAEVKE - U ARSAIRE - o T EERNBEE T
) - EABBMEETRRENET - HMA
MR EEEE N EMEERS - 2IE0ER
MMWFRTRE (BIEER KR 3 - B
FREERZERS)  ())5KEEERRE
B R(NVEMERTIR(EEAMETRE) -
RN EEE 2 EEER LG B
HRBIERR,/RAREETRR - BFREM
BEEEMSRE RN EEEMW  THER
TEAAERE - BRIFMELSKEERUKE
HERZEMB REBES BN —KbEE
WETERGREFIEHERHT R £KR
BREZAERETEZEED -

HANBRZFEZDARBBRARKZLZHE
EREREETREBEBNES - BELRE
ENEEEN - SBORETTEE S - RERE
ARZEBWMREREERE N  RASUE
BEANTPENMETEM SR RERLN
BER MR IEMER -

HE2019F12A31HIEFE - HFIEEK118
B EELER AR STHARK1,203.4
BET: NERTKI24EEETIZER - 44
BEEHANRE11389F & T ° N20194F 12
A318  HMFEHB13BMER (BIEER
HERDEREHASINER)  MALE
MENEBEBRNARBIIISHETT -

R

RN BIRAD P 202053 A 18 B A B 2 AT E AR AKX
Wi - EF2RA LTRRALREETLR
WRRNEENTEEEEREEAZE 1o -
ETABRFREFESSAKBIRIEMFES
NHEREHERFASIEXEAREER -



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

The construction industry in the PRC has been supported by various
governmental policies over the years. In terms of the effect of the
coronavirus outbreak, the entire economy of the PRC is expected to
be adversely affected, but by experience, infrastructure and
construction industries are usually affected to a lesser extent.
Previously, when natural disasters or epidemics were over, the PRC
government would generally make greater investments in (@mong
other segments) infrastructure projects, with a view to encouraging
economic stability and growth. If the PRC government continues to
adopt such policy, it is likely for the Group to engage in a greater
number of construction projects so launched by the PRC
government.

Having regard to the above, the Directors remain prudently
optimistic about developing new business opportunities in the PRC in
the long run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED T

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

10

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment
and has impacted the Group's operations and financial
position. The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of
the developments on the Group’s businesses and has put in
place contingency measures. These contingency measures
include: (i) negotiating with major customers, suppliers and
subcontractors about the arrangements for resumption of
construction works; (i) cutting unnecessary operating expenses
and capital expenditure; and (i) deferring the expansion of the
fleet of construction machinery and equipment. The Group will
keep the contingency measures under review as the situation
evolves. As far as the Group's businesses are concerned, there
were 60 projects on hand being affected and these projects
have been resumed gradually since the end of February 2020.
As the progress of these construction projects was delayed by
about one month, approximately RMB51.9 million of the
Group’s revenue which should have been recognised in
February 2020 has been delayed. In addition, the Group may
waive rental fees of leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools to certain customers of approximately
RMB6.3 million depending on their respective specific
circumstances. These may have consequential impacts on the
Group’s revenue for 2020. The actual impacts may differ from
these estimates as situation continues to evolve and further
information may become available. No adjustments have been
made to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in this regard.

In accordance with the shareholders’ resolution of the Company
dated 18 February 2020, the authorised share capital of the
Company has been increased from 39,000,000 shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each to 2,000,000,000 shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each and the Company allotted and issued
468,740,000 shares on 18 March 2020, credited as fully paid, at
par to the shareholders whose names were on the register of
member of the Company as of the close of business on 13
March 2020.

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued 156,250,000 shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each, at a price of HK$1.65 per
share by initial public offering. Gross proceeds from such issue
amounted to HK$257,812,500 before deducting underwriting
fees, commissions and related expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the overall revenue of the
Group has increased by approximately RMB385.5 million, or
approximately 32.3% compared to the year ended 31 December
2018, from approximately RMB1,192.8 million to approximately
RMB1,578.2 million. The overall increase was mainly due to an
increase in revenue from provision of construction service.

Our revenue generated from construction services amounted to
approximately RMB1,456.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (year ended 31 December 2018: RMB1,087.9 million),
representing approximately 92.3% (year ended 31 December 2018:
91.2%) of our total revenue.

Our construction service mainly cover foundation works, which
accounted for approximately 58.7% (year ended 31 December 2018:
73.3%) of the total revenue. To complement our foundation works
service, we also provide a wide spectrum of other construction
services including formwork and scaffolding works, construction of
sewage treatment infrastructure, and E&M engineering works. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue from formwork and
scaffolding works increased by 184.4% to approximately RMB398.1
million (year ended 31 December 2018: RMB140.0 million).

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly comprises of material cost, labour
subcontracting fee, depreciation and others. The overall increase in
cost of sales was in line with the increase in our turnover. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the overall cost of sales of the
Group has increased by approximately RMB317.0 million, or
approximately 34.9% compared to the year ended 31 December
2018, from approximately RMB907.2 million to approximately
RMB1,224.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED T

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Set out below is the breakdown of the gross profit and gross profit
margins of our Group by business segment and work type during the
year under review and the corresponding period in 2018:

EMREF=R
REIBFE R2018F RHEFEB D R T2
RSB AEBEENREMNEFFHTIN
T

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 GP % RMB'000 GP %
AR®T T EFNR% PN R E T &%
Foundation works HWETIE 209,549 22.6 210,806 24.1
Formwork and scaffolding works f&4R & ji F 28 T 32 63,629 16.0 22,112 15.8
Construction of sewage VSRR E MR R
treatment infrastructure 2,257 18.1 9,540 22.6
Other constructions Hih 2T 36,834 30.9 9,884 315
construction services BRERS 312,269 21.4 252,342 23.2
Leasing of construction AN RERIA
machinery, equipment and HE
tools 38,318 35.8 29,621 32.4
Sewage treatment operation V57K BRI FE TS 689 13.2 612 25.8
Others i) 2,747 29.8 2,947 26.6
354,023 22.4 285,522 23.9

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, our Group’'s
overall gross profit margin was fairly stable. We recorded gross profit
margin of approximately 22.4% for the year ended 31 December
2019 (year ended 31 December 2018: 23.9%). We had a relatively
lower gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2019
when comparing with that for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
the formwork and scaffolding works sub-segment, which has lower
gross profit margin, accounted for a relatively higher proportion of
our revenue for the year.

Other net income

The other net income mainly represented government grants,
interest income and gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the other net
income has increased by approximately RMB13.8 million, or
approximately 785.8% compared to the year ended 31 December
2018, from approximately RMB1.8 million to approximately RMB15.6
million. The increase in other net income mainly attributable to the
increase in government grants from approximately RMB1.7 million in
2018 to RMB12.2 million in 2019. Government grants were received
mainly for subsiding the costs incurred by the Group in conducting
research and development activities.
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Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly include (i) research and
development costs; (i) salaries and other benefits; and (iii) listing
expenses. The overall administrative expenses increased by
approximately 47.1% from RMB80.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB118.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
due to the increase in listing expenses from approximately RMB0.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB18.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, and also the
increase in staff costs and research and development costs.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represented (i) interests on bank loans and
other borrowings; (i) finance charges on sale and leaseback
transactions; and (iii) interest on acquisition of equipment by
instalments.

Our finance costs increased by RMB8.2 million from RMB9.1 million
to RMB17.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 when
comparing with that for the year ended 31 December 2018. This was
mainly due to that our bank borrowings and factoring arrangements
increased during the year.

Income tax expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the income tax expenses
has decreased by approximately RMB7.4 million, or approximately
20.3% compared to the year ended 31 December 2018, from
approximately RMB36.5 million in 2018 to approximately RMB29.1
million in 2019.

All of our Group’s subsidiaries operate in the PRC and our Group'’s
income tax represented PRC corporate income tax provided at the
statutory rate of 25%.

On 7 January 2020, Fujian Jianzhong Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jianzhong Construction Technology”) obtained the state-level
approval for its application of High-tech Enterprise qualification and
was granted the qualification with effect from 2 December 2019. In
accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the High-tech
Enterprise qualification will be valid for a period of three years from
2019 to 2021 and Jianzhong Construction Technology will be entitled
to a reduced tax rate at 15% during this period.

AS such, the effective tax rate of the Group decreased from 20.6%
in 2018 to 14.0% in 2019 and this contributed mainly the decrease
of income tax expenses in 2019.
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Net profit and adjusted net profit

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit for the year of the Group
increased by approximately RMB38.7 million, or approximately
27.6%, from approximately RMB140.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB179.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Setting aside the listing expenses amounted to approximately
RMB18.6 million and approximately RMBO0.3 million for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively, the Group’s
adjusted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB197.8 million as compared to approximately
RMB140.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
adjusted net profit margin (excluding the listing expenses) for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 were approximately 11.8%
and 12.5%, respectively, representing a slightly increase of
approximately 0.7%.

The above financial data were chosen to be presented in this annual
report as they represent a material financial impact on the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and/
or the year ended 31 December 2019. It is believed by presenting
the changes of these financial data can effectively explain the
financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
18 March 2020.

The Group maintained a sound financial position during the year
ended 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
cash and cash equivalent of approximately RMB103.0 million (31
December 2018: approximately RMB93.8 million) in which
approximately RMB79,000 (31 December 2018: RMB Nil) equivalent
cash were denominated in Hong Kong dollar. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had net current asset of approximately RMB452.2
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB361.1 million
as compared to that of approximately RMB91.1 million as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated
based on the net debts (including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and payables for acquisition of equipment by
instalments, less cash and cash equivalents) divided by the equity as
at the end of reporting period and multiplied by 100%, was
approximately 6.0% (31 December 2018: approximately 14.6%).

Particulars of loans and borrowings of the Group are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment, which had
been contracted but not provided for in the financial statements, in
the total amount of approximately RMB8.1 million (31 December
2018: approximately RMB5.1 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a total of 473 full-time
employees (31 December 2018: 364). The Group has developed its
human resources policies and procedures to determine the
individual remuneration with reference to factors such as
performance, qualification, responsibilities of each individual, market
conditions, etc. Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on a
regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits
including provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage,
annual leave and options which may be granted under the share
option scheme were adopted by the Company on 18 February 2020.
The total staff costs (excluding Directors’ remuneration) incurred by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB51.9 million (year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB36.7 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had
a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions were conducted in the PRC in RMB. Moreover, the
Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB. As
such, the Directors believe that the Group’s risk in foreign exchange
is insignificant.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the machinery
and equipment pledged for the sale and leaseback transactions as
disclosed on note 10(ii) of the consolidated financial statements
were RMB14,789,000 (31 December 2018. RMB16,346,000);, bank
deposits of RMB2,727,000 (31 December 2018: RMB2,235,000) were
pledged to banks as security for bills payable.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of RMB58,434,000 were
secured by the pledge of trade receivables of RMB58,434,000.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5
February 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands. The Group completed the
group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation for the
Listing on the Stock Exchange pursuant to which the Company
became the holding company of the Group. For further information
in relation to the Reorganisation, please refer to the section headed
"History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 29 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”). Apart
from the Reorganisation, there were no significant investments held,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 18 March 2020 with an issue of 156,250,000 new
shares. The net proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent
with that disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17
March 2020.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEBABER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xun Minghong (“Mr. Xun MH”), aged 50, was appointed as a
Director of our Company on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated
as the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun MH is primarily responsible for
supervising our overall management and planning our business
strategies.

Mr. Xun MH has over 26 vyears of experience in the PRC
construction industry. He accrued years of industry experience
during his employment at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (%
HERIORRMD BIRAF]), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 914) and is a
prominent cement producer and supplier in the PRC. Mr. Xun MH
had held various positions at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited
during his tenure of employment from July 1993 to December 2002
and his duties covered sales, marketing and management in
different working locations including Fujian Province.

Subsequently, Mr. Xun MH co-established and operated certain
construction-related businesses in the PRC. By virtue of his
diversified knowledge and experience in the construction industry,
Mr. Xun MH also accumulated a variety of business connection with
a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors in
Fujian. Equipped with such industry knowledge, experience and
strong business networks, Mr. Xun MH founded Jianzhong
Construction Technology on 5 December 2012 and engaged in the
leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools in Fujian.
Jianzhong Construction Technology had since then diversified its
business to include the provision of a wide spectrum of construction
works as its core business.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in law (CE&EZEZ) from Anhui Province Higher Education Self-study
Examination Committee (& & &S5 #H A BE2EHEZE ) and Anhui
University (Z#KE2) in the PRC in June 1993.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BRZERTEKZFZE) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (Fh#E AR KRB A EZ) in April 1994, specialising in the area
of logistics economics (& & 4% 75 5 %).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. He Wenlin, aged 50, has been the general manager and a
director of Jianzhong Construction Technology since November 2014
and since June 2016, respectively. He was appointed as a Director of
our Company upon its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was
redesignated as an Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall operation and
business and technical development. Mr. He also leads our R&D
Team.

Mr. He has over 25 years of experience in the construction industry.
Mr. He had held various positions at CSCEC Strait Construction and
Development Co. Ltd. (F@&/EHERZERBRAF]) (previously known
as China Construction Seventh Engineering Division Third
Construction Co., Ltd (FE2+BE=FEAFRAF), with his last
position as a department manager.

Mr. He graduated from Shenyang Institute of Construction and
Engineering (&[5 25 Ti22F0) (currently known as Shenyang
Jianzhu University (ZEFZZEKE)), in the PRC in July 1994 and
specialised his studies in mechanical design and production (1%
FTERELEE ).

Mr. He obtained a qualification certificate as senior engineer (=# T
2R & %% &) from China Construction Seventh Engineering
Department (FREEEE+ T F) in December 2005.

Ms. Zheng Ping, aged 56, was a director of Jianzhong Construction
Technology from December 2012 to October 2015 and subsequently
served as the deputy general manager and director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology since November 2015 and since June 2016,
respectively. She was appointed as a Director of our Company upon
its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated as an
Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Ms. Zheng is primarily
responsible for overseeing our overall operation and fixed asset and
material management.

Ms. Zheng has over 26 years of experience in the construction
industry. From February 1993 to March 2008, Ms. Zheng worked as
an assistant general manager of Fujian Province Jianfu Bulk Cement
Co., Ltd. (fBE BEMEKEBR A T), a then subsidiary of Fujian
Cement Inc. (f@ &/KJel&m B MR A7), a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE Stock Code: 600802).
From April 2008 to November 2012, Ms. Zheng worked as a deputy
general manager of Ming Xin Construction Material Trading Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the trading of cement.
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Ms. Zheng obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in computer application (Ft&# & &R F %) from Fujian Province
Higher and Secondary Professional Education Self-study Examination
Steering Committee (BEEmEHTPEEEHEEEREHIEEZE
&), Xiamen University (EFIX2) and Fuzhou University (f& /11 X22)
in the PRC in December 1993.

Ms. Zheng obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BEEIMTEKEE) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (PEARKEFBEAEHZD) in December 1996, specialising in
materials economics (¥ & #&%). She also obtained a qualification
certificate as an assistant engineer (B)¥E Ti2R0) specialising in
industrial and electrical automatisation (T 2 & & &8 &1k) from
Fuzhou City Personnel Bureau ({&Mm A EB) in May 1989

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Kaifa, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in securities management and the PRC capital markets.
From July 1996 to July 2017, Mr. Yang worked in Anhui Conch
Cement Company Limited (Z#U8BKEM D BRAF]), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 914) where he served, among others, as assistant to the
officer-in-charge (E1EBHIE), deputy officer-in-charge (8% 1{f) and
officer-in-charge (1) of the secretariat to the board of directors
(BEE=EWMEZ), secretary to the board of directors (EEEME), as
well as deputy officer-in-charge of the regional management
committee in Jiangxi Region (LA EEZ E&@EIE(E). Mr. Yang's
major duties in Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited covered
areas over company secretarial, securities affairs and general
management functions. Since July 2017 and July 2019, Mr. Yang has
served as a deputy general manager (g|424¢32) and general
manager (##£32) of Anhui Conch Venture Investment Co. Ltd.
(“Anhui Conch Venture Investment’), being one of the Pre-IPO
Investors.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree of arts (X E:&+) studies
specialised in foreign linguistics in English (#hN3& EZZL:E) from Anhui
University (Z#KE2) in the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Yang obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BT E K FE) as a senior economist (&= A% £ EM)
from Anhui Province Human Resources Bureau (Z# & AEEE) in
May 2009.
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Mr. Zeng Guohua, aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Zeng has over 24
years of experience in the PRC construction industry. Mr. Zeng
joined Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (Z#UE 8GR 1D B
fR A R]), a company which shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 914) in May 1995 and held several
positions such as (i) head of the cement works technical
department; (i) head of engineering technical department; and (iii)
committee member of the Indonesia regional management
committee (FIEEFHEEZE®ZS). Since June 2019, Mr. Zeng has
been the assistant in the office of general manager (424 3#8)32) of
Anhui Conch Venture Investment, being one of the Pre-IPO
Investors.

Mr. Zeng completed his studies specialised in port and channel
engineering (& H &M T#) from Changsha Communications
College (KX =@ ) (currently known as Changsha University of
Science and Technology (K2 T K&), in the PRC in July 1991.

Mr. Zeng obtained a qualification certificate as an engineer (T 2AM)
specialising in industrial and civil engineering (L& #E) from Anhui
Professional Titles Reform Work Leading Group (Z#i& BBk 2488
/N4B) in March 1999.

Mr. Xun Liangbao (“Mr. Xun LB”), aged 48, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun
LB completed his studies specialised in public management (A X &
1) from the Party School of Anhui Provincial Committee of the
Communist Party of China (R #Z# & ZER) in December 2007. He
served as a deputy officer-in-charge (8/= ) and officer-in-charge
(1) of the service center at the Anhui Bengbu Municipal People’s
Government Office (Z@WEHET ARBFHAZE) from March 1993 to
March 2018. He was employed as a vice general manager of the
Bengbu Branch of Jiangsu Wan Rong Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd. (IH S IEREARAREHES QE) from March 2018 to
December 2018. He has since then been a director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology from December 2018 onwards.

He obtained the Certificate of Registered Constructor in Construction
Works CGEEE T2 EMZE) from the Anhui Provincial
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (Z#& F 5
AP EERLEE) in May 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, J.P, aged 58, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of the Peace in
2011 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong
Government in 2015. He is currently the vice supervisor of the
Committee of Human Resources and Environment of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(FREARBGGAHEEHEZEZEGANERREZE S M), an
executive member of the Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (4 B A REBUAH
HgRtRMZEEFEEE), as well as the Permanent Honorary
President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Sze has been a member of the HKSAR Election Committee since
2006; and is currently a member of the HKSAR Labour Advisory
Board for 2019-2020.

Mr. Sze has been a director of Hang Tung Resources Holding
Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, since March 1984. The
company is principally engaged in property investment, import and
export trading, provision of management services and shares
investment. He is principally responsible for the day-to-day
management of its business operations, as well as the overall
strategic planning of the company.

Mr. Sze is currently an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including, (i)
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (stock code: 2360), a company
principally engaged in the operation of a leisure food retailer chain,
from December 2018; (ii) ST International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8521), a provider of functional knitted fabrics, from April
2018; (iii) Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 25), a
company principally engaged in the construction and property-
related businesses, from November 2016; and (iv) Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 513), a company principally engaged in
the jewellery industry, from October 2008.

Mr. Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of two
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including, (i) China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing of yarn products, from May 2011 to
June 2019; and (ii) Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 761) since February 2017. The trading in the shares of Bel
Global Resources Holdings Limited had been suspended since 4 July
2011 and the listing of the shares was cancelled by the Stock
Exchange with effect from 24 August 2018.

Mr. Sze received his degree of bachelor of science from the
University of Wisconsin — La Crosse in the USA in May 1985.
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Mr. Wong Kun Kau, aged 59, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. He has over 27 years of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance, and is the founder and has been the
chief executive officer of Bull Capital Partners Limited, a fund
management company specialising in direct investments in the
greater China region, since May 2008. Mr. Wong also held several
senior management positions with reputable financial institutions
including BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited from August 1992
to November 2007, where he left as the head of investment
banking-Asia. He has been an independent non-executive director of
REF Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631), a company principally
engaged in financial printing services, since August 2015.

Within the three years prior to the date of this annual report, Mr.
Wong was an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including (i) West China
Cement Limited (stock code: 2233), a company principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of cement and cement products, from
July 2010 to May 2019; (ii) Sansheng Holdings (Group) Company
Limited (stock code: 2183), a company principally engaged in
property development and property investment, from August 2013 to
May 2017; and (iii) China Shengmu Organic Milk Limited (stock code:
1432), a company principally engaged in dairy farming business and
liquid milk business from June 2014 to June 2017. Mr. Wong had also
been an independent non-executive director since May 2012, and the
chairman of the audit committee of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (stock code: 914) since May 2013, until his retirement as an
independent non-executive director in June 2016.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in social science from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1982.

Mr. Zhu Diwu, aged 45, was appointed to our Board on 18 February
2020 and does not hold any position with other members of our
Group. Since May 2017, he has been the co-founder, chairman and
chief executive officer of Shanghai Aihui Health Technology Co., Ltd.
(EBEERBERER AR, a company principally engaged in the
provision of information technology services to hospitals in the PRC
since May 2017. He has also been a director of Inventio Capital
Management (HK) Limited, a company principally engaged in asset
management. Mr. Zhu has been mainly responsible for supervisory
the overall management in the above two companies.

Mr. Zhu was employed at Deutsche Bank Group from July 2005 to
November 2010, where he last served as a director, equities
research analyst in the global markets division of the company.
Subsequently, Mr. Zhu was employed by Beijing Gao Hua Securities
Company Limited from November 2010 to May 2017 and served as a
managing director in the global investment research division of the
company.
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Mr. Zhu completed the study and passed the examinations of the
international MBA program co-developed by Fudan University and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology in June 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ni Xingshou, aged 52, is our assistant general manager. Since
July 2015, he has been an assistant general manager of Jianzhong
Construction Technology. He is primarily responsible for the co-
management of our business operation.

Mr. Ni has over 30 years of experience in the PRC construction
industry. He participated in the construction works and served as a
quality control officer at Fujian Yongtai No. 3 Construction
Engineering Company Limited (f@i2 & KFFE ZFEETREAR]) from
July 1986 to December 1995. He was then employed as a project
production manager at Fujian Yongtai Construction Engineering
Company Limited ({824 XFEEE TR A A) from January 1996 to
December 2006. From January 2007 to June 2015, he was the
production manager of the production department of Fujian
Jianzhong Labour Engineering Co., Ltd.

Mr. Ni completed an online learning course of Wuhan Polytechnic
University (23 T K &), the PRC in June 2006 and specialised his
studies in civil engineering (/K T 2 5 %)

Mr. Ni obtained qualification certificates as an engineer (T #2AM)
specialising in industrial and civil engineering (ZE#) from Fujian
Province Human Resources Bureau (f&&#& A=E2) in June 2001 and
as a Construction Engineering Works Grade Il Constructor (& T 12
AR5 3ERT) from the Fujian Provincial Department of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development (f&2%& (FFEMEREE) in May 2013. He has
also obtained the Certificate of Work Safety for Project In-charge
Officer in Construction Enterprises GREE TR XBEEAEALEAE
EEZAKFEZE) from Fuzhou Urban-Rural Construction Committee
(BN 48 a8 % B &) since March 2019.

Mr. Shao Yonghui, aged 53, is our chief engineer of our quality and
safety department. He has been the chief engineer and general
manager of the quality and safety department (E2% &%) of
Jianzhong Construction Technology since October 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the (i) liaison with governmental
administrative units and departments in relation to construction
works; and (ii) the quality and safety management of our Group.
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Mr. Shao has over 29 vyears of experience within the PRC
construction industry, specializing in areas such as construction
works technology, quality and safety management and construction
project management. He was employed at the Fujian Economic and
Technological Development Zone Construction Engineering Quality
Supervision Branch (f8M 4B it R ER TIEEEEE ) from
September 1989 to October 2012, and was designated as (i) a civil
engineering and municipal works supervisor (fEMHEES); (i)
technical officer-in-charge (&#i& & A);, and (i) head of branch
during his period of employment. He was then employed as an
engineering officer-in-charge at Lanzhou High -Tech Development
Company Limited (BN = ¥ F 2 E & AR A F]) from November 2012
to June 2017.

Mr. Shao completed his studies specialised in industrial and civil
construction (LZ R A #2E) at Open University of Fujian (12 & /& &
EIRAE), the PRC in July 1989. He also completed an online
learning course of Sichuan University (P9I X2), the PRC in June
2005, specialising his study in civil engineering management (7K T
B(ER)).

Mr. Shao obtained a qualification certificate as a senior engineer for
construction technology and management (i L /i B2 & 18 = 4 72
BMEE £) from Fujian Province Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau ({8 EE A N E RS REE) in May 2007.

Ms. Feng Rongmei, aged 31, is our company secretary. She is
primarily responsible for the administrative matters of the Board and
financial management of our Group. Since August 2017, she was a
secretary to the board of Jianzhong Construction Technology.

Ms. Feng has over 7 years of experience in finance and accounting.
From July 2012 to July 2015, she was an audit staff in BDO China
Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP Shenzhen Branch (iZ
EEFTMEBHBET (R BE %) #Y15 FT). From September 2015 to
June 2017, she was a senior manager of Southwest Securities
Company Limited (P AR A AR A F]), a company which is listed
in Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE Stock code: 600369).

Ms. Feng obtained a bachelor degree in management from Guangxi
University of Finance and Economics (EFH4&£E3), the PRC in July
2012 and majoring her studies in accountancy (& zt22 5 %),
minoring in law (X2 %),

Ms. Feng has been registered as a non- practising member of the

Shenzhen Association of Registered Accountants (&3t sE & =+l
&) since August 2015.

24 Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019

BB 5 AR Ikﬁﬁ%%&*ﬁémii@ﬁ '
EREBEET M- iﬁ%ﬁf@&g%
Ti2ER - BA1989¢9HI2012¢10H wIE
BRENEERTTHAEERS IREEEEE
i HERNERHRE AT A iLmEﬁzﬁ*ﬂ
B (hEMma i A Rijuh & o E1&71R2012
FNMAZE2017F6R - BEREBEMNEIFEER
BRABETIRBEA-

BB 198947 A }Mﬂ HEEEEERAZE
TR TERAEE B o #2005 6
A m)llﬁ%%;ﬁﬁkﬁ%(%ﬂi)%%
P BERRE -

BB E R 2007 F5 ARSEERE A NERE S
REEBEZENEIRITEEESK TEME
=,

%%;ti'mﬁ’ﬁmﬂﬂ@ﬂwgoﬁz

ZREEESETHREENAEEVBHER
B2017F8 A AR » RAEFER Ws‘zé%”*

ERTERHREF T EBEERIFLR - B

20127 AE2015% 78 AN {EE:T %
B (BEREBAR)RIDFNETE -8
20159 A E2017F6 A HATREE ARG
EIKE/AET(E@LEE’é"*%ﬁﬁi?ﬁ(i?&ﬁﬁé’é

HRIE : 600369)) K= AR 4512

Z L2012 7 AEUE EPIFEEM«EB%%
BELEN FTEOTEEE  HELEH
%o

=L+ 5201598 A A AR I M & 516l
HEIFAXEE -



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAERERE

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, aged 41, is our chief financial officer. He is
primarily responsible for the financial management of our Group.
Since August 2019, he was a chief financial officer of Jianzhong
Construction Technology.

Mr. Ma has over 15 years of experience in accounting. From August
2002 to December 2003, he joined KLL Associates CPA Limited as
audit junior and subsequently promoted to audit assistant.
Thereafter, he joined KPMG in December 2003. During his time at
KPMG, he held various positions and last held the position of a
senior manager in the audit department until his departure in
August 2015. From September 2015 to September 2017, he was a
chief financial officer and company secretary of CT Environmental
Group Limited (FERIREEABR A F]), a company which is listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1363).

Mr. Ma is a member of the Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (Zengcheng District of Guangzhou, the PRC)
(PEARBUAHEAGEMNTERREZES).

Mr. Ma obtained a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2002. Mr. Ma
completed the examinations of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and became an affiliate member in August 2003. He
was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants on 28 February 2007, and has been registered as a
certified public accountant by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2008.

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 53, joined the Company as company
secretary on 23 August 2019. He assists Ms. Feng Rongmei and is
responsible for corporate secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a diploma of business administration from the
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1990. He has been registered as a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since February
2008, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom since February 2008, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since July 2017, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom since
October 1996 and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2000. Mr. Chan has also been a mediator
of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre since November 2010.
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Mr. Chan has over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing,
banking and company secretarial fields. For the period from January
1992 to March 1998, Mr. Chan had served in UDL Management
Limited and his last position was a financial controller. He had also
served as company secretary of UDL Holdings Limited (now known
as DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited) (stock
code: 620) from January 1992 to September 1997 and as company
secretary of KEL Holdings Limited (now known as Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 681) from March 1997 to
September 1997. He has been the sole proprietor of Ken Chan & Co.
Certified Public Accountants, since July 1998. He had also served as
company secretary of Ming Hing Holdings Limited (now known as
Peace Map Holding Limited) (stock code: 402) from November 2005
to October 2006 and company secretary of Powerwell Pacific
Holdings Limited (now known as China Trustful Group Limited) (stock
code: 8265) from December 2010 to September 2014. He had been
the company secretary and an executive director of Sam Woo
Holdings Limited (now known as Hong Kong Chaoshang Group
Limited) (stock code: 2322) from March 2003 to June 2011. Mr. Chan
had served as an independent non-executive director of Pak Tak
International Limited (stock code: 2668) from December 2014 to
August 2016.

Mr. Chan currently holds the following positions in other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange as follows:
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Stock Position Currently Held
Name of Company Code by Mr. Chan Period of Services
AAEER BHRE FRELBERETZRE ERHR
Altus Holdings Limited 8149 Independent non-executive From September 2016 till present
director
EEERBR AR B IEITESE 2016F9R &S
Sam Woo Construction 3822 Company secretary From January 2013 till present
Group Limited
—HRESEBEBRAA NEBE 2013F1H&ES
KPa-BM Holdings Limited 2663 Company secretary From June 2015 till Present
JE1ZERB R A A NEBE 2015F6 R ES
M&L Holdings Group Limited 8152 Joint Company Secretary From June 2017 till Present
BAREREEBR AR SNSRI 2017 F6RES
Universe Printshop 8448 Ccompany Secretary From June 2017 till Present

Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board hereby presents to the shareholders the corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

As the Company was not yet listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange until the Listing Date, the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange was not applicable to the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and is satisfied that the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code throughout the period from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report, except for the deviation as mention
below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Xun MH currently holds both positions. Mr. Xun MH is the founder of
the Group. He has diversified knowledge and experience in the
construction industry as well as a variety of business connection
with a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors
in Fujian. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person will
provide strong and consistent leadership to the Company and allow
the Company to be more effective and efficient in developing long
term business strategies and execution of business plans that are in
the best interests of the Company.

In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees, and there
are three independent non-executive Directors offering independent
perspectives, the Board is of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code, and maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Upon enquiry by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’'s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
Director of the Company, the approval of interim and annual results,
declaration of interim dividends and proposal of final dividends and
other disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by the
Board for consideration and approval. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily management and
operation of the Company are delegated to the executive Directors
and the management of the Company.

Composition

The Board of Directors consists of three Executive Directors, three
Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. A list of Directors and their respective biographies are set
out in the section “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Board consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, one of them, namely Mr. Wong Kun Kau, possesses of
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. After the Listing and up to the date
of this report, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
represents at least one-third of the Board which is in compliance
with Rule 3.10A. As such, the Company believes that there is a
sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.
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Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors. The commencement date of
each of the service agreement is 18 February 2020, for an initial
term of three vyears. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The
Company has also signed a service agreement with each of the
Non-executive Directors on 23 August 2019, for an initial term of
three years.

Meetings and Attendance

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Committees’ meetings held up to the date of this annual report are
set out in the table below:
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Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

FHERE

ES53

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EEE ENRZEE REZES 2] BR BRER
L 88 8% ZEged BEAE BRAAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Xun Minghong EER el 1M NATER 171 N/AS TEAO NA® TEA® NAY FEme
Mr. He Wenlin XL E 11 NATRER  NATER NAY RERD NAY TERS N/AY TERS
Ms. Zheng Ping Bt 111 NATRER  NATEE WA TERO NAD REHEe N/AD REmRe
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa BEREL 111 NATEE  NATEE NAY TEEBY NAY TERY NAY REme
Mr. Zeng Guohua BEELE 111 NATER  NATEER NAD TERO NAD REHRe N/AD FEmRe
Mr. Xun Lianghao HRERE 111 NATEE  NATEE NAY TEED NAY TERY NAY REme
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKBITES
Mr. Sze Irons® ik S 1" 11 171 N/AD TERS  N/AY TERS N/A® REme
Mr. Wong Kun Kau® BEMELD 1 171 171 N/AS RERO N/A® TEAO N/AD FEme
Mr. Zhu Diwu® K E L LY 7 m”m 171 N/A® TERS N/AD TEBS N/AY TEpRe
. Chairman of the Board - EERERF
2 Chairman of the Audit Committee 2 EREEEXR
: Chairman of the Nomination Committee 3 RELZEE®ERE
a. 4.
5. 5.

Remuneration Committee meeting, annual general

Due to the fact that the Shares were listed on 18 March 2020, no
meeting or

extraordinary general meeting had been held. These meetings will be

held in 2020 accordingly.
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In respect of code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors.

As the Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange during
the year ended 31 December 2019, no such separate meeting
between the Chairman of the Board and the non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) was held in 2019.
Such separate meeting will be arranged during the period from the
Listing Date to the year end of 31 December 2020.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors shall participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skill to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant
information regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements. Prior to the Listing, each of the Directors
have attended the training courses conducted by the legal adviser of
the Company. The content of such training related to the duties of
directors and on-going obligations of listed companies.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the quality of its performance. The board diversity policy provides
that the Company should endeavour to ensure that our Board
members have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of its business strategy.

Pursuant to the board diversity policy, we seek to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of
service. The existing members of the Board were appointed after
taking into account the aforesaid factors.

The effective implementation of the board diversity policy requires
that our Shareholders are able to judge for themselves whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a gradual move to
increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed which they support.
To this end, our Shareholders will be provided with detailed
information of each candidate for appointment or re-election to the
Board through announcements and circulars published prior to
general meetings of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 18 February
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, (i) assisting our Board by providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems of our Group; (ii) overseeing
the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by our Board; (i) developing and reviewing our policies and
practices on corporate governance,; (iv) making recommendations to
our Board; and (v) ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and
Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP. Mr. Wong Kun Kau is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held one committee meeting between the
Listing Date and the date of this annual report with external auditor
without the presence of the executive Directors to discuss the
results and findings in connection to the audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to our Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group, review performance based remuneration and ensure
none of our Directors determine their own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Zhu
Diwu, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP and Mr. Xun MH.
Mr. Zhu Diwu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the appointment of
Directors and the management of our Board succession, by
considering the factors below, among others:

a) mix of Board members that promotes diversity of background
and experience on the Board, taking into account the business
model of the Company and any specific needs;

b) educational background and competency;
C) age of potential/existing Director,
d) independence of potential/existing Board members;

e) business, technical, or specialised skills and experience of
potential/existing Board members;

f) ability, time, commitment and willingness of a new member to
serve and an existing member to continue service; and

2) specific value a potential/existing Board member can add to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Sze Irons B.B.S., JP, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and Mr. Xun
MH. Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee shall report back to the
Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations, unless prohibited by applicable laws and
regulations.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting between
the Listing Date and the date of this annual report to propose re-
election of retiring Directors in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Risk Management Review Committee

The Company has established a risk management review committee
in August 2019 with written terms of reference. The members of the
risk management review committee are Mr. Xun MH., Mr. Wong Kun
Kau, Mr. Xun LB and Mr. Ma Chun Kei. Mr. Xun MH is the chairman
of the risk management review committee.

Its major functions include, (a) ensuring our Group's internal control
function in respect of budgeting to be adequately resourced; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the cash budget prepared by our Group’s
management; (c) ensuring the client acceptance procedures are
appropriately adopted to reduce potential credit risk; (d) reviewing
the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, and ensuring
appropriate procedures are adopted to collect the overdue
receivables; (e) ensuring we have adequate financial resources to
fulfill the capital requirement of any tender with acceptable profit
margin to us; and (f) monitoring the related party transactions to
ensure these transactions to be conducted on normal commercial
terms.

To carry out these functions, the risk management review committee
is responsible for conducting monthly review and quarterly meeting,
and discussing with the Executive Directors for any significant issues
identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditors to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately as follows:

B S 1% B Eh i BN

REZE2019F12 A318 IEFE - ZEEH R A
EERENEZNIEEZRG 2 FH 0w
—F:

Type of services RMB’000
PRI R ARET

Annual audit services for the year ended HE2019F12A318 1k
31 December 2019 FENFERETRSE 1,330
Reporting accountants services for the Listing LR AT AN AR 4,185
Internal control review for the Listing LT RE R 610
6,125

DIVIDEND POLICY REBE

The Company may declare dividends in the future after taking into
account the results of operations, earnings, capital requirements,
general financial condition, and other factors as our Directors may
deem relevant at such time. The declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of our Directors and the approval of our
Shareholders (except for interim dividends) as may be necessary.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will
be subject to the applicable requirements of the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019, and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section
headed "Independent Auditor's Report”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretary of the Company, Ms. Feng Rongmei and
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
Their biographies are set out in the section “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Ms. Feng Rongmei is an employee of the Group while Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong is an external service provider. The primary contacts of Mr.
Chan Sun Kwong with the Company are Ms. Feng Rongmei and Mr.
Ma Chun Kei.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
provide all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Articles, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy, among others,
the following rights:

0

(i)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of the
shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent
to the shareholders no less than 21 days before the meeting.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’
meetings and make proposals by either directly raising
guestions on both operational and governance matters to the
Board and committees members at the general meetings or
providing written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at Room No. 1818,
18/F, Beverley Commercial Centre, 87-105 Chatham Road
South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to
jlanzhong_cons@fjjzkj.com.
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(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings

(iv)

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
may also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at Room No. 1818,
18/F, Beverley Commercial Centre, 87-105 Chatham Road
South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s headquarters and principal place of business at
2002, lJinlan Building, No. 33 Zhaogiang Road, Mawei District,
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, China or at its Hong Kong share
registrar and transfer office at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required under Article 113 will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of interim and annual
reports, the publish and posting of notices, announcements and
circulars on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website in order to maintain a high level of transparency.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save for the adoption of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association for the purpose of and upon the Listing,
there was no changes in the Company’'s memorandum of
association and the Articles.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board reviews the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group for each financial year annually to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Directors believe that effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems can avoid or reduce risks which can
cause loss or reputational damage to the Group. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

An internal audit function is set up to identify, monitor and manage
the key risks area associated with the business activities in relation
to the financial and operational matters/practices of the Group and
to provide its findings and any recommendations for improvement to
the Audit Committee. The internal control and risk management
systems include a defined management structure with segregation of
duties and a cash management system such as monthly
reconciliation of bank accounts. During the year 2019, we engaged
an independent internal control consultant (“Internal Control
Consultant”) to evaluate our internal control and risk management
systems. Based on the suggestions made by our Internal Control
Consultant, we take remedial measures to the deficiencies and
shortcomings of our internal control and risk management systems.
After such review, the Board considered that the Company’s
enhanced internal control and risk management systems was
adequate and effective.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of insider information, the Group has a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information in the staff
handbook.

Prior to the Listing, the Company arranged a training session
provided by our Hong Kong legal adviser to all Directors as
continuing professional trainings. Such training covered the topic of
the disclosure of inside information.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the provision of construction
service, leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools, and
provision of sewage treatment service in mainland China. Details of
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) is set out in the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, major risks are summarized below:

i)  Non-recurrent nature of the projects

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
construction works service. The construction services are
offered on a project-by-project basis with no long-term
commitment with any of the customers in this segment. Upon
the completion of the ongoing construction works projects, the
Group may not be engaged by the customer in subsequent
construction works projects. As such, the revenue attributable
to the construction works service is not recurring in nature.

In the event that the Group are unable to attract new
customers or secure new construction works projects from
existing customers, the Group's revenue or profit may
decrease significantly and this would adversely affecting the
business, financial condition or results of operations of the
Group.

i) Fluctuation in cost of materials

Since the contract value of each of the construction projects
are generally pre-determined when a project is awarded, any
substantial increase in the material cost between the time of
submission of a tender or quotation and the time when the
relevant materials are purchased will substantially increase the
material cost and may materially and adversely affect the
profitability, results of operations and financial condition of the
Group.
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iii)

iv)

V)

Availability and performance of labour
subcontractors

The Group has to engage a number of labour subcontractors
to provide the Group with a large number of construction
workers with different expertise and skill sets to carrying out
the construction works. In the event that the labour market
conditions result in shortage of labour or material increase in
labour costs, the Group may need to offer more competitive
labour subcontracting fees so as to attract and maintain a
reliable supply of construction workers. Such events could
impact the profitability and financial performance of the Group.

Delays and/or defaults of progress payments by the
customers

The Group generally receive payment from customers in stages
based on the terms of the construction contracts. Significant
portions of the operating costs, setting-up expenses associated
with a project, including labour and material costs, at the initial
stage of a project are incurred before any progress payment
made by the customers. As a result, there may be periods
during which the Group may experience net cash outflows for
a particular project as well as on an overall basis. Therefore,
the Group are constantly subject to credit and liquidity risks,
which may materially and adversely affect the profitability,
result of operations and financial position of the Group.

Macroeconomics in the PRC

Any adverse change in the economic condition in the PRC may
directly or indirectly affect the demand for the services
provided by the Group, and the business operations and
financial condition may also be materially and adversely
affected as a result.

Should there be an economic downturn or credit crisis in the
PRC for any reason, the Group may not be able to borrow new
funds, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the
results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Moreover, apart from the access to funds, an economic
downturn or credit crisis will also affect the liquidity of the
customers. As a result, the recoverability of the Group's
account receivables may be adversely affected. The details of
the financial risk management of the Group are disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

iii)

iv)

V)
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GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5
February 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group completed the
Reorganisation on 21 May 2019 in preparation of the Listing on the
Stock Exchange pursuant in which the Company became the holding
company of the Group. For details of the Reorganisation, please refer
to the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” in the listing documents of the Company dated 29
February 2020 (the "Prospectus”).

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since 18 March 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’'s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report, save for those non-compliance incidents
disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group in all material aspects has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. There
was no material breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group during the period from the Listing Date
to the date of this annual report.

40 Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019

SEEA
ARRBNR2019F2ABEREMEBHES R RA
RASHEEIMRIA/EHRRERAR - K
SEN2019F5 B21 ATl EA - ABENE
R LT BUARBRSAEENERA
A BHEANFRE F2HARTEHA
2020F2H29R 2 E XM ([HRIRER]) F
[E - SEHEEATRE] & -

-

KN BIE D B R2020F3 A18H R B X BT
m o

BIFERRER

AEENELTERARANBERARETE
NIFER > MARBAFHEBRIA LW e
it BT M E 2 BB TR B A R E
B RBERER - BE2019F12A318 1k
FELEERFRAH BRBRERZMKE
MZETNEREMEIN AEECERBEX
THETHAEEEGENEERABEATE
HARBDERNOER - B £ A B E A F R
B AEBEVEFRERZRITETERZX
BREER -



Report of the Directors
EXTEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 89.6% (2018:
approximately 85.9%) of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 68.9%
(2018: approximately 55.2%) of the total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 90.2%
(2018: approximately 97.4%) of the total subcontracting cost of the
Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted for
approximately 49.5% (2018. approximately 67.2%) of the total
subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 30.5% (2018:
approximately 35.7%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 12.4% (2018. approximately 12.1%) of
the total purchases of construction materials.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers or subcontractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group aims to maintain stable relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly committed
to delivering quality services to our customers on time.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based on
their previous experience, skills, present work load, price guotations
and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on their prices,
quality, past performance and capacity).

Employees

The Group recognised employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group intends to adopt the competitive remuneration, good
welfare benefits and continuous professional training to attract and
retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material
dispute or argument between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 66 of this annual
report.

The Directors does not recommend any declaration and payment of
final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 152 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is scheduled to be held on Monday, 22
June 2020. A notice convening the AGM will be issued and
despatched to the shareholders according to the applicable law, the
Articles and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be
held on Monday, 22 June 2020, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 17 June 2020 to Monday,
22 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 June 2020.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Charitable contributions made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB208,000 (2018:
Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the authorised share capital and issued
share capital during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in note 25(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 18 February
2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group. Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years commencing
on 18 March 2020.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or proposed
Director (including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
direct or indirect shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; and any consultants, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of our
Group, a person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group, or a
close associate of any of the foregoing persons. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 62,500,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option
Scheme such that the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest
grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time
to time.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by our Company within the period specified
in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once
such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been
granted and to have taken effect from the offer date.
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The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  the average closing price of a share as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five Business
Days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding
the offer date.

As at the date of this annual report, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
25(a) to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
redeemed, purchased or sold any of the listed securities of the
Ccompany.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated
Corporation

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31
December 2019, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and section 352 of the SFO were not
applicable to the Directors or the chief executive of the Company as
at 31 December 2019.

As at the Listing Date, interests or short positions the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance) which were required (i) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or (i)
pursuant to Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest

ERWE
5 A 22 ) IR A A I 1

A AR T H201912 A31 B 3 AR BT PR
T MR2019F 128318 - B REIE K
fﬁIJ(F%#&Eﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ)%XV*BE’J%W&S“*
LA R 58 %5 b B 6 5 5) S 35230 i@ B R A A
RIEEHETETHRAR -

RETAM ARBEEREEBTHAER
ARm g EAEREREZE (EEREFLME
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BO)RER 7 M BRI FI2GAE LN %
ffRpratz B R gORR - HNRIE
ET AR RIS+ PR E ST R Z R E M A
EARRBI LBz EETORBWT

REQTDEBRNETR

Number of
ordinary shares
held/interested

Percentage of
shareholding*

i HEEER
EENSE B, kg ZEREE BERBEDL
Mr. Xun MH Interest in a controlled corporation® 318,984,375 51.04%
BRI E REZEHEERERD
Mr. Xun LB Interest in a controlled corporation® 46,828,125 7.49%
BRELAE REZEHEEREZR?
Notes: B 5E -
1. The Company is directly held as to 299,156,250 shares and 19,828,125 1. XA A5 B AMHX  Investment Limited

shares by MHX Investment Limited (“MHX Investment BVI") and JingH
Investment Limited (“JingH Investment BVI"), respectively. MHX
Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment BVI
is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to be
interested in the aggregate number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO.

2. The Company is directly held as to 46,828,125 shares by Furi Investment
Limited ("Furi Investment BVI"). Furi Investment BVI is owned as to
42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr. Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the
number of Shares that are held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at the Listing Date.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares in the
Company other than Director

As at the Listing Date, so far as our Directors or chief executive of
our Company are aware, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or a short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company, as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest

R EXFREEI  REMAH  BIEARF]
EFNTFRTHRABRAR A S EAFHEB
ZE(EEREH LR E KR FEXVE) B
- HERDKEEEFABREES LB
BIRPIFEIS2EFALER B AR BAFEER
e EREDESOAR  HRFZRETRES
THEARB R PTEOERERIORR

BRESUNTERRRADARMH
s

RETRH BARAEFTHTIETHRAR
P ATAL(RARREEREETRAER
BRON AR B RO R SRR 0 h BB IR IR
& 75 M B (R DI 58 336 IR A RCER N R A R B AT
FEELMOERIORE

Number of
ordinary shares
held/interested

Percentage of
shareholding*

B BERER

BRREE HE B REmtE VEERBE BHRASK*
MHX Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 299,156,250 47.87%

EHBEAAO
Ms. Song Dongling Interest of spouse® 318,984,375 51.04%
KRR+ [iRRLEr ol
CV Construction Capital Limited Beneficial owner® 102,937,500 16.47%
BEIERERNBRAF EHEAAQ
Conch Venture Development Limited  Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
BREIEERAR AR REEGEE R
Yijiang International Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
VIEBREERAA REEGEE R
Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
FAXIKREBRAR REEGEE R
Anhui Conch Venture Investment Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
ZHRBBEIZERE REEGEE R
Furi Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 46,828,125 7.49%
BImIR EBVI EHEAAQ
Ms. Leng Yan Interest of spouse® 46,828,125 7.49%
g2 [igp
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Report of the Directors
EXTEHRE

Notes:

Save

The Company is directly held as to 299,156,250 shares and 19,828,125
shares by MHX Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI, respectively.
MHX Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment
BVI is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Song
Dongling is the spouse of Mr. Xun MH and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Xun MH is
interested under the SFO.

The Company is directly held as to 102,937,500 shares by CV
Construction Capital Limited (“CV Construction BVI"). CV Construction
BVI is wholly-owned by Conch Venture Development Limited (“Conch
Venture Development”). Conch Venture Development is wholly-owned
by Yijiang International Limited. Yijiang International Limited is wholly-
owned by Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Anhui Conch Venture Investment. Accordingly, each
of Conch Venture Development, Yijiang International Limited, Shanghai
Yijiang Investment Limited and Anhui Conch Venture Investment is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares that are held
by CV Construction BVI under the SFO.

The Company is directly held as to 46,828,125 shares by Furi Investment
BVI. Furi Investment BVI is owned as to 42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr.
Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the number of shares that are
held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Leng Yan is the
spouse of Mr. Xun LB and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Xun LB is interested under the
SFO.

The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at the Listing Date.

as disclosed above, as at Listing Date, no person, other than

the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated Corporation”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

B3

1. RAFDRIHMHX  Investment BVIN &i&
% EBVIHE ZE # 5299,156,250 % & 15 &
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KL HEHEE 36.99% © IRIEE FH KBS &) -
BB AR ARMHX  Investment  BVI
F&BREBVIFTIEMAREE WD #ES
B REB LT AERATENEE -
I IRBFES LEEGR - EERARE R
AEEHEERENEREENRNDTPIESE
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fm ©
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Report of the Directors

EXEHRE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company or any of
its holding companies or subsidiary, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no reserve of the Company was
available for distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the
Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors
EXTEHRE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xun Minghong (Chairman)

(appointed on 5 February 2019)
Mr. He Wenlin

(appointed on 5 February 2019)
Ms. Zheng Ping

(appointed on 5 February 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Kaifa

(appointed on 23 August 2019)
Mr. Zeng Guohua

(appointed on 23 August 2019)
Mr. Xun Liangbao

(appointed on 23 August 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Sze Irons, B.B.S., J.P.

(appointed on 18 February 2020)
Mr. Wong Kun Kau

(appointed on 18 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Diwu

(appointed on 18 February 2020)

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EXEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions
and Related Party Transactions” in this annual report, there was no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Ccompany, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.

Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS POLICIES

Details of the Group’s emolument policies are set out in the
paragraph headed “Employees and remuneration policies” in the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company as well as the
prevailing market conditions.
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Report of the Directors
EXTEHRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company,
which were not a contract of service with any Director or any
person engaged in the full-time employment of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, and have complied all
applicable requirements with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set
out below:

1) Provision of construction service to Xiapu Jinghai Property Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiapu Property”). Xiapu Property is wholly owned by
Fujian Runjiang Industrial Group Limited (“Fujian Runjiang”), a
company owned as to 95.0% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is
one of our Executive Directors and controlling shareholders
and hence a connected person of our Company. As Mr. Xun
MH holds more than 30.0% equity interests in Fujian Runjiang,
each of Fujian Runjiang and Xiapu Property (being a subsidiary
of Fujian Runjiang) is considered an associate of Mr. Xun MH
and a connected person of our Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

On 1 November 2018, lJianzhong Construction Technology
entered into a construction contract for construction works
projects with Xiapu Property, pursuant to which, Xiapu
Property engaged our Group to provide foundation works
service for a building construction works project, with an
aggregate site area of approximately 37,000 sq.m. The project
was completed as at the date of this annual report with
RMB2,363,000 being recognised as revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (For the year ended 31 December
2018: RMB10,092,000).

On the basis that the project-based foundation works service
mentioned above is regarded as a one-off connected
transaction entered into by Jianzhong Construction Technology
prior to the Listing, rather than a continuing connected
transaction, the reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules will not be applicable.
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Tenancy agreement with Conch Venture Henghai Investment
(Zhuhai) Co,. Ltd. (“Conch Venture Henghai”). Conch Venture
Henghai is wholly owned by Anhui Conch Venture Investment,
our substantial shareholder. Conch Venture Henghai is
considered an associate of Anhui Conch Venture Investment
and a connected person of our Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Mr. Yang Kaifa is a director of both Conch
Venture Henghai and our Company as at the date of this
annual report. Ms. zZhang Mingjin, who is a director of Conch
Venture Henghai as at the date of this report, was a director of
Jianzhong Construction Technology during the period from 13
December 2018 to 16 June 2019.

The Group entered into lease agreements with Conch Venture
Henghai to lease certain premises at zhuhai City, Guangdong
Province, from Conch Venture Henghai for a term of one year
commencing from 1 April 2019 to 30 March 2020 with monthly
rental of RMB299,000. Rental paid and payable by the Group
under the lease agreements amounted to RMB2,471,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (For the year ended 31
December 2018: Nil).

On the basis that the tenancy agreement mentioned above is
regarded as a one-off connected transaction entered into by
our Group prior to the Listing, rather than a continuing
connected transaction, the reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will not be applicable.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EXTEHRE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, applicable laws and regulations, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur
or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the year
under review. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection to
ensure business development and sustainability. The Group
implements green office practices to reduce the consumption of
energy and natural resources. These practices include the use of
energy-saving lightings and recycled papers, reduce energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers and electrical
appliances and the use of environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected
to be published on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company’s website no later than three months after the publication
of this annual report in accordance with the requirement under the
Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Particulars of events after the reporting period are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by KPMG, who shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Xun Minghong
Chairman

Fujian, 26 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jianzhong
Construction Development Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 151, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Awditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

AR EE R
FREBASFHERERMANEXAE  RA
HAHG AV BRRNBAR/EENTA -
EUEEEEERMEABRESMBRERNL
HAZRRETREN - RATSHELS
RERHERFNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to notes 3(@) and 15 to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in
notes 1(j) and 1(r)().

The Key Audit Matter
BEESER

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of
construction service, including foundation works,
formwork and scaffolding works, construction of sewage
treatment infrastructure and other construction works, in
mainland China totalling RMB1,456.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

HZE2019F12ANBILFE - EXEBRPEIARERMH
BERY  SIEMETRE BREMWFEIR  5KEE
EMEABmESREMEETRE BB RE6HEARKE
1,456.7B 8T °

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, based on direct
measurements of the value of contract work performed,
which is mainly reflected by the progress certificates
issued by customers. The customer will provide final
account when the whole project is completed and may
have adjustments on the amount recognised to date
according to the actual surveys of work performed at
completion.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMPNESFNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition for
construction contracts included the following:

PR EERE NN R ERETHNETEFE2EAN
T&IHE :

e assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
contract revenue recognition processes;

o HERANAREREFFTSEENEEENRET - B
11 RIBIERKAR

e inspecting a sample of contracts with customers, to
identify key terms and conditions, and to assess the
Group's revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards,

o MBBMBEEPIIMEA - iR E ZHER R -
W2ERTEAEANRENE EXE I WEER

e comparing the contract revenue recognised for
construction projects during the year, on a sample
basis, with progress certificates issued by
customers,

o MBEAEEBFARELEEBARANEGHN W EEAETS
FEENEEFAETHL
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B ZBENRE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to notes 3(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in
notes 1(j) and 1(r)().

The Key Audit Matter
HEESNEE

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

MR EERBN AARETSE  RERKEE &
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESFTNAEEZEE

e conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe
the progress of individual projects and discussing
with project managers or site personnel about the
physical status of the respective project with
reference to the agreed timetable and the Group's
accounting records;

o MBRAREBEETEMER  UEBRHERIELEEE -
WT2RHERBMEE BESEMNSTEEHEEE KE
B A B RAEIEE BB

e comparing the certified amounts in the final accounts,
for contracts completed during the year, with the
contract revenue recognised to date, to assess
whether adjustments in the final accounts, if any,
have been reflected in the Group’'s accounting
records; and

s MFNETKEL  KEKREETHRZSHEAHE
BRIFTHERHE AW EITLE Y - UFHE KRB &
WRAE (B EERMAE BESEMEFTRHET Kk

e o0btaining confirmations, on a sample basis, from
major customers of the Group to confirm amounts
certified for selected construction projects during the
year and, for unreturned confirmations, performing
alternative procedures by comparing details with
contracts, and other underlying project related
documentation.

e MBEARERM BEREFZEFPERERE  UER
FANETEEHENRESRE  UWHRTHERRENT
HMiEr  BESENEFEEE R AMBHENIE
Rl hgEae

56 Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

Loss allowance for trade receivables, bills receivable
and contract assets

Refer to notes 16 and 26(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1(h)().

The Key Audit Matter
HEESEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets
amounted to RMB967.1 million, against which a loss
allowance of RMB49.0 million was recorded. The
Group’s trade receivables, bills receivable and contract
assets mainly arose from provision of construction
service.

R2019F 124318 - EXEE ZEBFIALERE - EIE
BREHNEERARBI/NEEL  BitiRBRER
SHEABARKNOEEL EEEZESEKFIE - E
WEBRENEEETERBRMEEERTS -

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss based on
estimated loss rates for each category of receivables.
The estimated loss rates take into account the ageing of
trade receivable balances, the repayment history of the
Group’s customers of different risk characteristics,
current market conditions, customer-specific conditions,
and forward-looking information. Such assessment
involves significant management judgement and
estimation.

BEEEERSHEERFIEMNERBRE - RBEHENE
BEEHANEREEEINCETEBRER - HHIE
REERE HRWFIAEGESRERER - ESETREHARR
BEEPHEWES BRI ERL  BPEERRLM
AIEME R - ZAH P REBARKERE A B FGE

EZRENE BURRERANEEZBAER

D[k & BT ERFZ T 16 R 172 26(a) R AT &L 10h)()F 89 &
TR °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANESFTNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for
trade receivables, bills receivable and contract assets
included the following:

LA HESEKFIE BREBRENEECHEKRE
HEHESIEFEFENTEIE -

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and credit loss allowance calculation;

o THREEARBRES FEEDKRREEBRERTE
ERE R BRI B S - R (B A RE  MITAETA
g

e evaluating the Group's policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o Z2MBTSHERNMENX  FE BEEBFHEEIR
KEBRGETEOR

e assessing whether items were correctly categorised
in the trade receivables ageing report by comparing
individual items therein with relevant underlying
documentation, on a sample basis;

s WEHEWHKIBREDMHRETRIVAFAIEE - %28
Z R R - AR ERER ST w SRR
@ 2l o 22 1
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

Loss allowance for trade receivables, bills receivable
and contract assets

Refer to notes 16 and 2é(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1(h)).

The Key Audit Matter
REESEER

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables,
bills receivable and contract assets as a key audit
matter because determining the level of the loss
allowance requires the exercise of significant
management judgement which is inherently subjective.
HRIEBREHENEESRERNEEEHE  BHFRE
EBNEEN  BMEEZEKFTIE BERERREL
BEZIEBREBRN BERETEE -

EZRUNE BREERANEEZBRAER

BTk & B AN L 16 R it 26(8) K B3t 100)() 69 &
TR °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETNAEEZEE

e obtaining an understanding of the key parameters and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by the management, including the basis of
segmentation of the trade receivables, bills
receivable and contract assets based on credit risk
characteristics of customers and the historical default
data in management'’s estimated loss rates;

s THREBEEHEERAEAFRMEANBRS2EK
R BHEEEEENRTFPERARREREEZEW
HIE - BREBREANEEETHENER - UKE
BEEHREAEPAENELENER

e assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data and evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

s BBAKREEEEANMEANGENER  BEAFAESL
ERAERERYE THELBEREESEEREER
AISBEMRRRAIEEERETHE  FEEEBHR
BREFETOEIENE

e re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as
at 31 December 2019 based on the Group’s credit
loss allowance policy; and

e BN EBEREGEBRREBITRNGTHREENE
M2019F 12 A31 B BRERE : &

e inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts from
debtors subsequent to the reporting date relating to
trade receivable balances and contract assets as at
31 December 2019.

o EEUEA  REMNR2019F12A318 B Z EINGRIA A #
RE&REERIEBIK -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
Process.

7

fRE B A% R R I E R B AT R 5 LA S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

s HEEEMRASTRRNREMERE
HEsHEF AR EN SR -

s HEERARKELLIFERNREML
e - RIBFMTERNETRE
ERAFHERFRELBNEENHNEKRT
EEE KmAExY BEXENRE
BRERNEEEAEE - MREFIR
RFEERTHEEG B LEEZE
B & P IRmEAE LB ARAMBHRS
MAREIRE - REARNKETRE - B
BREERRFERBEER - RANE
i N BE RS B L FTERG ARt
BEE A RREFRABRATEE

B ERBETHEERERLE -

s FESAMBHRERNEBRIIEHIA R
BNAR  BRERE ARGV BKR
EEATERBBBEXZMER -

e B BERERNEBAEBHEIHNTBKE
BERRER - EEMNELTRE NEY
REMBHmERERER -HZMAE &
SEBJFTHNR - EBMBT - LMK
B BRRAREHEE-

BREMERI RFIRBAZESBEBT A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Hin Pan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE20194F12A31H L FE

2019 2018

20196 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARBFIT

Revenue U 2= 1,578,218 1,192,750

Cost of sales 55 A AR (1,224,195) (907,228)

Gross profit ER 354,023 285,522

Other net income H b F U A 15,608 1,762

Administrative expenses TBRAX (118,908) (80,820)

Other operating expenses H g (25,038) (20,362)

Profit from operations £ R 225,685 186,102

Finance costs Bl & B AN (17,363) (9,121)

Profit before taxation A FIE 208,322 176,981

Income tax FriS i (29,082) (36,487)

Profit for the year FERFE 179,240 140,494
Earnings per share B =

Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARK) 0.38 0.30

The notes on pages 69 to 151 form part of these financial Z569ZF 1518 MM sk Z S M H KR — &6
statements. 4o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReEBRERkHMAZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 128318 ILF/E

019 2018
0194 20184
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETIT
Profit for the year #=RFR® 1 179240 | 140,494
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEKE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to — B AJpEEZ 7B Z JEzs
profit or [0ss: H)IE A -
Exchange differences on translation of financial 2% b B8 ;A 3 A 91 3£ 75 B4
statements of operations outside mainland THHmEHE X Z58
China 4 —
Other comprehensive income for the year ~~ #WHMEEK= | 4 T
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKRRAHE 179,244 140,494

The notes on pages 69 to 151 form part of these financial Z69ZE151H KM sE ik Z M A HRER M — &6
Statements. 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN R

At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H

2019 2018
20196 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE T ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB L& 10 397,232 423,285
Intangible assets mEE 1 702 793
Receivables under service concession RIS AT L HEIE TR
arrangement fE U T8 17 32,909 36,753
Deferred tax assets EETIEE E 23(b) 4,031 1,632
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 10,724 14,548
445,598 477,011
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 14 26,561 42,579
Contract assets BREE 15 490,201 254,842
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE U kI8 16 476,509 365,290
Receivables under service concession RIS ELBEIE T A
arrangement JE W 3R IE 17 17,436 9,249
Restricted bank balances PR IR 1T 45 gA 18 2,727 2,235
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 19 102,968 93,772
! 1,116,402 | 767,967
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E e FRIA 20 581,359 498,601
Contract liabilities EHEE 15 13,322 5,123
Loans and borrowings BERMER 21 57,256 134,778
Current taxation BV EA % 18 23(a) 12,238 38,401
! 664,175 | 676,903
Net current assets MEEEFEE 452,227 91,064
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI T

At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H

2019 2018

20196 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

M7 AR®T T AR®ET T

Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERS 897,825 568,075
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Loans and borrowings ERRER 21 64,492 5,627

Other non-current liabilities HM3ERESEE 24 9,201 5,460

73,693 11,087

NET ASSETS EEFE 824,132 556,988
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXKGHE

Share capital fi& 7 25(c) —* 148,000

Reserves ] 824,132 408,988

TOTAL EQUITY S 824,132 556,988

& The balance represents an amount less than RMB1,000. e ZEBS BT EARY,0007T -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 7202053 A 26 A & &= = & #it Jf I & #5 # 3%

March 2020. 1T
Xun Minghong He Wenlin

" R4 1] ST AR

Director Director

EZE EZE

The notes on pages 69 to 151 form part of these financial 2E69ZE 151 H KM iK% A RER ) — &6
Statements. 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 128318 ILF/E

Share Capital  Statutory Special  Exchange Other Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Bx  EXEE  ARBE  SEEE  ENER  EbRBR  READ )
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB/000  RMB'000  RMB'000
iRl AR%Tn ARMTr ARMTr AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2018 R018F181BHER 1000 118228 9,552 1299 = = 72818 3128%
Changes in equity for 2018: R01BEHEREE
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ ERFIEREZENALE
for the year = = = = = = 140,494 140,494
Appropriation 1o statutory reserve REETRE 25(0)i = = 1216 = = = (14.216) =
Transfer to special reserve EREEREE 25(c)il) = = = 5,604 = - (5,604) -
Capital injection from equity shareholders  BHRRTE 25(0)) 37,000 66,600 = = = = - 103600
Balance at 31 December 2018 and R2018%12831 AR 2019
1 January 2019 E1R1RMES 148000 184,825 23,768 6,903 - — 193492 556988
Changes in equity for 2019: 019FEHST :
Profit for the year EmfE - - - - - - 179,240 179,240
Other comprehensive income E2 Ak 25(d)v) - - - - 4 - - 4
Totl compretersie e L S T TTo A= i
Appropriation 1o statutory reserve HEZETRE 25(0)(i) - - 21,296 - - - (21,29) -
Transfer to special reserve BRZEERE 25(c)i) - - - 4,833 - - 4,833) -
Capital injection from equity shareholders — EZRETE 25(d)) 20,450 71575 - - - - - 92,025
Isstiance of new shares Bk 25(0)) — - - - - - - -
Elimination of capital upon Reorganisation ~ BABRALH 25(0)v) (168,450) - - - - 164,325 - (4125)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RO9E2ANBRER =t 256400 45,064 11,736 4 164,325 346,603 824,132
* The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. e ZEERSETEARE,0007T ©
The notes on pages 69 to 151 form part of these financial Z569ZF 1518 MM sk Z S M H KR — &6
statements. 2o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 128318 ILF/E

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T T AR®F T
Operating activities S —Pr )
Cash generated from operations KEEELMNRS 19(b) 138,080 86,317
Income tax paid =ENIZIR (57,644) (18,479)
Net cash generated from operating RETHELENERELFHE
activities 80,436 67,838
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of property, BEYMHE  WEREE
plant and equipment B (83,818) (90,666)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E¥E  BE MR E
and equipment P15 7008 5,735 800
Payment for purchase of intangible assets 88 & 45 2 & 2= {1 3% — (240)
Net cash used in investing activities HEEBMAIRE FE (78,083) (90,106)
Financing activities MEEH
Proceeds from new bank loans FERITERTEKIE 19(c) 153,210 220,834
Repayment of bank loans BRIEITER 19(c) (160,751) (207,270)
Interests paid on bank loans and other EAIRITER R EMER
borrowings & 19(c) (13,525) (4,366)
Payments of lease liabilities HEABEMNK 19(c) (1,691) (715)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEABMNEHD 19(c) (180) (149)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by B B &5 HiT =&
instalments 19(c) (28,779) (18,843)
Interests paid on acquisition of equipment B B & &2 B 5 2 -+
by instalments PSS 19(c) (2,413) (2,669)
Payments for capital element of ERERR FHEERER
obligations arising from sale and B AR D TR
leaseback transactions 19(c) (9,425) (9,285)
Interest element of obligations arising from & &8 @ 32 5 & A4 &)
sale and leaseback transactions MEE D 19(c) (933) (1,900)
Capital injections from equity EanREEE
shareholders 92,025 103,600
Payment of listing expenses EHERMK (4,415) (113)
Transactions with shareholders during the E4EHIMEAEHAIRZ 5
reorganisation 19(c) (4,125) —
Advances from related parties A 5 AR 19(c) 25,972 261,664
Repayments to related parties ) [ Bt 5 38 3K 19(c) (38,127) (220,257)
Repayments of other borrowings H & BB 3K 19(c) — (6,500)
Net cash generated from financing RMETHELENRERHE
activities 6,843 114,031
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE& R R &ZFYEM
FE 9,196 91,763
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1BNEERES
LEY 19(a) 93,772 2,009
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31EMNEER
31 December BHEZEEY 19(a) 102,968 93,772

The notes on pages 69 to 151 form part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSS
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. The
Company has consistently applied all applicable new and
revised HKFRSs, which are effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2019, including HKFRS 16
“Leases”, throughout all the periods presented in the
Group'’s financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

1

EXRETHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

1

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 5 February 2019 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
CAP. 22. The Company is an investment holding
company and has not carried on any business since the
date of its incorporation save for the group
reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) mentioned below. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 March 2020. The Group is principally
engaged in the provision of construction service, leasing
of construction machinery, equipment and tools, and
provision of sewage treatment service in mainland China.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company, the above
mentioned principal activities were carried out by Fujian
Jianzhong Construction Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jianzhong
Construction Technology”) and its subsidiaries. To
rationalise the corporate structure in preparation of the
listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange,
the Group underwent the Reorganisation, as detailed in
the section headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure” in the listing documents of the
Company dated 29 February 2020. Upon completion of
the Reorganisation on 21 May 2019, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group.

As Jianzhong Construction Technology was controlled by
Mr. Xun Minghong (the “Controlling Shareholder”) before
and after the Reorganisation and therefore there were no
changes in the economic substance of the ownership
and the business of the Group. The Reorganisation only
involved inserting companies with no substantive
operations as the holding companies of Jianzhong
Construction Technology. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared and presented as a
continuation of the consolidated financial statements of
Jianzhong Construction Technology with the assets and
liabilities of Jianzhong Construction Technology
recognised and measured at their historical carrying
amounts prior to the Reorganisation. Intra-group
balances, transactions and unrealised gains/losses on
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand. RMB
is the functional currency and the reporting currency for
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. The
functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars. The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an

investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(h)(ii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(h)(ii)):

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

e Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
e Motor vehicles 3-10 years
e Tools 3-10 years
e Electronic equipment 3-5 years
o Right-of-use assets (Note 1(g)(i)) 1-5 years
e |easehold improvements 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 1(h)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

e Software 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

1

EXREFHE(H)
d) % BEEZRE

(e)

ME - BE KR EEKARRG
& MR EER SRR (RKTEE1(M)
(i)

W% BER&REEEB RES
EMELENKRSEHEBRALERR
BRRFREZABRAEZHE
MEEET UYRNHEILELZ
BB R -

ME BERKEERR 2TER
TG AT E R F 5 - EMRE
EEFFSREE (A E  KER

JEMSE E R ARG E ¢

o Wk 3E 104
o AE 3E104F
e TH 3E 104
o BEFEME 3&E54
o FAEEE 1254

(B 3= 1))
o HEWMEEE 34F

BEMAMERFHRFSERE
B)EBFETEM -

BIEEE
AEERENEREERRAR
St R Rt R ERBEIE (R
BEAQINE

ERFHERNETEENSE
HREENGAERFHUE
OBt AR & - U T A B EH
ERMEFNEEAAHRERZAE
TR - EAEAIERFEHMT

o HfF 104

BIHHR R A B FEITERN -

BhERRRARAT —E-NEER 73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

1

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession
arrangement, which is a Build-Operate-Transfer (“the
BOT") arrangement. Under the BOT arrangement, the
Group carries out construction work of upgrading the
facilities of the sewage treatment and receives in return
a right to operate the infrastructure for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by
certain government authority (“the Grantor”). The
infrastructure should be transferred to the Grantor with
nil consideration at the end of the Service Concession
Period.

(i) Consideration given by the Grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service
concession arrangement) is recognised to the
extent that the Group has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial asset from the
Grantor for the construction service rendered and/
or the consideration paid and payable by the Group
for the right to charge users of the public service.
The Group has unconditional right to receive cash
if the Grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group specified or determinable amounts or the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and specified or
determinable amounts. The financial assets
(receivables under service concession arrangement)
are accounted for in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 1(k).

Revenue relating to operating services are
accounted for in accordance with Note 1(r)(ii)
below. Costs for operating services are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Service concession arrangement (Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade
service under the service concession arrangement
is calculated as the estimated total construction
costs plus a profit margin. The profit margin is
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based
on prevailing market rate applicable to similar
construction service rendered in similar location at
the date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction or upgrade
services is accounted for in accordance with Note
1(03).

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure
to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must
fulfil as a condition of its licences, that is, () to
maintain the facilities of sewage treatment it
operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or
(i) to restore the plants to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the Grantor at the
end of the Service Concession Period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the
sewage and reclaimed water treatment and water
distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 1(q).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)  As a lessee

Where the contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily steel
pipes. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

(8

@

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 1(d) and 1(h)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
in “loans and borrowings” separately in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group
considers whether the initial transfer of the
underlying asset to the buyer-lessor is a sale. The
Group applies HKFRS 15 to determine whether a
sale has taken place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

(g

@

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the
Group derecognises the underlying asset and
applies the lessee accounting model to the
leaseback — the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only
the amount of any gain or loss related to the rights
transferred to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the
Group continues to recognise the underlying asset,
and recognises a financial liability for any amount
received from the buyer-lessor.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note 1(r)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in Note 1(g)(i), then the
Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

All the leases are operating leases from the
Group’s perspective. The Group recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as part of “Revenue”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables and
receivables under service concession
arrangement); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 1(j)).

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(h)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under
service concession arrangement are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continuea)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available),

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(r)(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay

the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired, an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets (other than property carried at

revalued amounts);

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company'’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

)

(Continued)
(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment l0ss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to
be consumed in the production process or in the
rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold/utilised, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(h)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(r)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Receivables under service concession
arrangement and trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1())).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(h)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(h)(i).
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see Note 1(t)).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on assets under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group's
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time using
output method based on direct measurements of
the value of contract work performed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(r)

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Construction contracts (Continued)

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

Revenue from sewage treatment

Revenue from sewage treatment is recognised
when the relevant service is rendered.

Sales of construction materials and equipment

Revenue is recognised when the customers take
possession of and accepts the construction
materials and equipment.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 1(h)(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r

(s)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

@)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group'’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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2  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the consolidated financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes
the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(@)

(b)

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy Note 1(r)(), revenue from
construction contracts are recognised over time. Revenue
on uncompleted projects is dependent on estimating the
outcome of the contract. The Group recognises revenue
based on direct measurements of the value of contract
work performed, which is mainly reflected by the
progress certificates issued by customers. The customers
will provide final account when the whole project is
completed and may have adjustments on the amount
recognised to date according to the actual surveys of
work performed at completion. Subject to the
adjustments in final accounts, actual outcomes in terms
of total revenue may be higher or lower at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue in
future periods as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the impairment loss if
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an item
of property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. The carrying amounts of these assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
level of estimated revenue and operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and costs.

Impairment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables
under service concession arrangement

The impairment assessment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under service
concession arrangement of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of these
assets as well as other quantitative and qualitative
information and calculated the lifetime ECLs based on
credit loss experience, and on management’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information.
Significant judgement and estimates is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these assets, based
on the current creditworthiness, the past collection
history and subsequent settlements of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEHRERME
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(@) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
construction service, leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools, and provision of sewage treatment
service in mainland China.

Wi K 2 B &

(@) W=
AREFHE
R EER

BRBRETE AL
B REER KB

K T EHEE AR5 KEERT

(i) Disaggregation of revenue iy Ww=nBED
019 2018
019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 ARBFIT
Revenue from contracts with EBMKREEASE
customers within the scope of 15 EEAREE
HKFRS 15 EH W=
Disaggregated by major products 1%+ BE R REE
or service lines gl
— Revenue from construction — BERBKE
service 1,456,680 1,087,896
— Revenue from sewage treatment — 57K i2 32 IR 7% U 25
service 5,213 2,373
— Others* — EHfh* 9,206 11,067
1,471,099 1,101,336
Revenue from other sources H 4t 3R R #9 Uk &=
— Revenue from leasing of — BREMW - RER
construction machinery, TEMAE K
equipment and tools 107,119 91,414
1,578,218 1,192,750

& Others mainly represents sales of construction
materials and equipment and provision of certain
logistic services.

* HihE RIEREMB R

RIGHE W RREY
VY 0 i

019 2018
019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
K AR T

Disaggregated by timing of R R ERREE S

revenue recognition

— Over time — RERE 1,569,012 1,181,683
— Point in time — RE—IEEHHES 9,206 11,067
Total At 1,578,218 1,192,750
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(@)
(i)

(i)

98

Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Revenue from major customers which accounts for
10% or more of the Group's revenue are set out
below:

3

ZEA
=FB
ZFEC

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

Wz K 2 P & (4)

% (&)
@

(@)

iz &2 ()
o 25 1 7 S B U 25 10% 3% A
FOEERPHEIIMT

2019 2018

20196 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
1,086,884 658,686
N/A* RERA* 121,450
N/A* F3E A * 127,442

3 Less than 10% of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from
these customers are set out in Note 26(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts is RMB977,534,000 (2018:
RMB530,560,000). The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur over the next
36 months (2018: next 36 months).

The above amount also does not include any
amounts of completion bonuses that the Group
may earn in the future by meeting the conditions
set out in the Group's construction contracts with
customers, unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the conditions
for earning those bonuses.
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(iii) Total future minimum lease payments receivable by
the Group

As at 31 December 2019, total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in place will be receivable by the Group
were RMB4,504,000 (2018: RMB8,359,000). All these
lease payments were receivable within one year.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by service lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. No geographical segment
analysis is presented as substantially all assets, liabilities,
revenue and gross profit of the Group are attributable to
the operations in the PRC.

The Group has four separate segments as follows:

° Provision of construction service
service”);

("Construction

o Provision of leasing services of construction
machinery, equipment and tools (“Leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools”);

o Provision of sewage treatment service (“Sewage
treatment operation”); and

o Sales of construction materials and equipment and
others (“Others”).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results based
on the revenue and gross profits of Construction service,
Leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools,
Sewage treatment operation and others.
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FEMBHRERME
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkosHHmE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEREFE (&)
Leasing of
construction
machinery,
Construction  equipment treatment
service and tools operation Others Total
EEEW
RER FKEE
BER% IAHE % Hith @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETR ARETr ARETR AR¥ETx
Year ended HZ2019F
31 December 2019 12A31ALEE
Revenue Yezs 1,456,680 107,119 5,213 9,206 1,578,218
Cost of sales HEKAR (1,144,411) (68,801) (4,524) (6,459)  (1,224,195)
Reportable segment WEDHEF
gross profits 312,269 38,318 689 2,747 354,023
Year ended HZE2018F
31 December 2018 12A31BLLEE
Revenue gz 1,087,89 91,414 2,373 11,067 1,192,750
Cost of sales HEMKAR (835,554) (61,793) (1,761) (8,120) (907,228)
Reportable segment wEDHER
gross profits 252,342 29,621 612 2,947 285,522
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REMBRRME
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WERFHHRSE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEREFE (&)
The Group's Construction service segment consists of REBBERBHSHBRLENATE
below categories: o

5 e H {28 &
hETRE M H e 82
RMB’000 B'000 RMB’000 B’000 RMB'000
Year ended 31 December  EHZ2019F12831H
2019 tEE
Revenue Wigs 926,867 398,071 12,445 119,297 1,456,680
Cost of sales HEKAR (717,318) (334,442 (10,188) (82,463) (1,144,411
Gross profits EF 209,549 63,629 2,257 36,834 312,269
Year ended 31 December ~ EZ2018F12831H
2018 tEE
Revenue Wrzs 874,308 139,990 42,254 31,344 1,087,896
Cost of sales HERAK (663,502) (117,878) (32,714) (21,460) (835,554)
Gross profits eyl 210,806 22,112 9,540 9,884 252,342
All of the Group’s revenue were arising from mainland AEBEFRBER=HEREERER
China. The Group does not allocate any specific assets or o ARASESRITHERE
expenditure for property, plant and equipment to the WERERBBENEEMRSE DS
operating segments as the Group’s senior executive MRE  NEBWTERYE - K
management does not use the information to measure B B &% o5 BE AE (1) 45 Bl & 2= 2
the performance of the reportable segments. STELEDE -
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mEMBHRRME
4 OTHER NET INCOME 4 HMFWA
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFTT
Interest income B WA 1,878 959
Government grants* BT 78 B 12,196 1,692
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HE&E¥E - HE M &E
and equipment ezt (E58) 1,509 (907)
Others HAh 25 18
15,608 1,762
* Government grants were received mainly for subsiding the costs e BREMEEREDAEEEEL Y
incurred by the Group in conducting research and development MEER ZSMUBWRLEREKZ
activities. There were no unfulfilled conditions relating to the {55 o
grants.
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BiATRE

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

AT FEE Mk

2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEFTT
(@) Finance costs (@) ®MERK

Interest on bank loans and other IRITER R EAME K
borrowings oIV 12,825 4,385
Interest on lease liabilities HESBEMHNE 180 167

Finance charges on sale and ERERR S8
leaseback transactions =] 933 1,900

Interest on acquisition of equipment LA B AT SR A 5%
by instalments EEBRE 2,413 2,669
Other borrowing costs Hib G ERAR 1,012 —

17,363 9,121
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FEMBHRRME
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BAIFEGE)
019 2018
019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AREF T
(b)  Staff costs (including directors’ b BIRK(BREES
emoluments) <)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHM
& H 50,431 36,397
Contributions to defined FE MR KE R
contribution retirement benefit &I (MY EE22)
schemes (Note 22) 3,071 1,325
53,502 37,722
019 2018
019 20184
RMB’00( RMB'000
R AR F T
(c) Other items () HfEH
Depreciation e
— property plant and equipment — BEYE BEX
owned (Note 10(i) & (HFEE100)) 100,601 93,357
— right-of-use assets (Note 10(ii) — FREEE
(Bt &£ 10(i)) 2,298 1,039
102,899 94,396
Amortisation of intangible assets &
(Note 11) (H$3E11) 91 78
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 R H A FEUGRIE &
receivables and contract assets ABHEERNRAEBE 20,808 15,496
Loss on property, plant and WEHE - WE R EAE
equipment written off " &5 18 — 4,115
Expenses relating to short-term B E SN ER
leases 57,664 51,066
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B 1,330 472
Research and development costs fiff 2% & 55,415 46,579
Labour subcontracting fee B eE 465,856 172,767
Listing expenses EmEA 18,605 338
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GEMBBRRME

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HFEBEXRTPHAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (@ HEEZRTWBIES:

or loss represents:

2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Current tax — PRC Corporate FIR B R — FEEE
Income Tax P
Provision for the year F B 31,481 29,384
Deferred tax — PRC Corporate BEEHE — FELEF
Income Tax Frie#
Origination and reversal of EEREDEREER
temporary differences (2,399) 7,103
29,082 36,487
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HERBEEABIEMX
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: BEEAE YR :
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Profit before taxation A5t 11 A1 B 208,322 176,981
Notional tax on profit before 25 B B 5 E R A S BB 2R

taxation, calculated at the rates T E 2 B AT B B E K
applicable to profits in the

countries concerned 52,322 44,245
Tax effect of non-deductible AN E TG E
expenses 1,257 903

Tax effect of super deduction for — B MNTHIKROHBTE
qualified research and

development costs (5,384) (8,742)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not =k #& 2 74 &) A & T8 E5 18 Y
recognised W E 594 81

Effect on deferred tax balances at HEFRZ&HEHN1A1H
1 January resulting from a change  EILFIE&E SR 2

in tax rate 716 —
Statutory tax concession EEMBEER (20,423) —
Actual tax expense ERBIBRXZ 29,082 36,487
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e M |RME

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Group did not earn any assessable profit that was subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Group's subsidiaries in mainland China is subject to
PRC corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%.

On 7 January 2020, Jianzhong Construction Technology
obtained the state-level approval for its application of
High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the
qualification with effect from 2 December 2019. In
accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT
Law"), the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid
for a period of three years from 2019 to 2021 and
entitles Jianzhong Construction Technology to a reduced
tax rate at 15% during this period.

6

(b)

(%)
GEE

REBRBERTHAEHR (F)

BIEABRITERBIER X
EEFAEzENER

BRERBRARAT / —2-NFFR

0]

(ii)

(iii)

REFSHERRBELES
MR A FOER - REEBAEM
MHRERBRRBREAHEEN
EFIFRFH

HRAEBRE E2019412 A
318 1L F [ I £ BRER (] 78 5%
MEBFEB A ERTOEF
A bt I 8 5k B S FI 1S B 0E B
& -

REE R T E ALK E R F
FRYR25% 1)) TE Bt R 38 4k R B
EEMEH

B ER BB E e R R
EZRIA202056F1 A7 HES
BERGEHE  HEFSZERR
2019412 A28 # 4 % - 1R
(hEANRENMBECERER
FNREMEHIED - 2
it EERNE R AE=F (A
#2019 £20214F) » Eh 2
R EHE R A = SR IR 15% HY
B o
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SEUMBMERME

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIBE AR RMEBIZE383(1) 1§ K& A F] (#
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESH=ER) ROIE2MMEENE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMEAT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

) 0 d be ) 0 019
) DO 0 0 0 0
4 Y 5 019

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xun Minghong RELRE — 180 270 4 454
Mr. He Wenlin A SO — 180 220 4 404
Ms. Zheng Ping B+ — 144 206 — 350

Non-executive directors FHUTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa EREELE — — — — —
Mr. Zeng Guohua BEEL L — — — — —
Mr. Xun Liangbao HRERE — 135 213 3 351
— 639 909 11 1,559
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2018
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R LN 20184
EEYikn EMEH B IE AT STEIf R &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTRT AREBTLT ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xun Minghong RS = 180 220 4 404
Mr. He Wenlin A UM = 180 170 4 354
Ms. Zheng Ping Lifcy oy = 144 156 = 300
— 504 546 8 1,058
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e M |RME

7

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

IND

Mr. Xun Minghong, Mr. He Wenlin and Ms. Zheng Ping were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on 5 February
2019.

Mr. Xun Minghong, Mr. He Wenlin and Ms. Zheng Ping were also
directors of the Group's subsidiary, lianzhong Construction
Technology and/or employees of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 and the Group paid emoluments to
them in their capacity as the directors of Jianzhong Construction
Technology and/or employees of the Group before their
appointment as executive directors of the Company.

Mr. Xun Liangbao joined the Group in December 2018. Mr. Yang
Kaifa, Mr. Zeng Guohua and Mr. Xun Liangbao were appointed
as non-executive directors of the Company on 23 August 2019.

Mr. Sze Irons, Mr. Wong Kun Kau and Mr. Zhu Diwu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 18 February 2020.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no
amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals set out in Note 8 below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

IVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2018: 2)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2018:

7

EEME (&)

GER

@)

BB A AIXMEE R
M2019F2 A5 A EZ ERARRIHH
TEE-

REE20194F 2018412 A31H 1L
& BRI A~ SO A R BRS
ZEIHEAEBH B ARZEFER
RENEER SAEERES MY
BEEZTBRNRRMITES ZAT
AEEURSRERERRENES
MR EERNEE S H RSN
< -

B R B R EMN2018F12A MAKE
B iGRBEE  BRELEREAER
B R EN2019F8 423 B EE AKX
AR FEMITES -

MESRIR S & - BB A RARM R 5
E 202062 R 18HEZE AR R A
B IERITES -

REE20194F 2018412 A31H 1L
B AEEVESENEHETE
Fok X M8 H Y M E R &= E A
+ - {EA R 3|15 5 AR & B k5 0
AN [ B A 42 B) sX 1 & B B AY 4
8 - REIE 20194 %2018 12A31H
IEFE HMEESERERREWNET
BE:ATEck-z 3

BESEHMAL

hEZSHMALH - 2% (20184 : 2
Z)RESE  HEMRKF7HE - £
3% (20184F : 3%) AL 2 & BN EEE 7

3) individuals are as follows: m
019 2018
0191 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREEF T
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMme 926 450
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 394 450
Retirement scheme contributions RARET B R 13 12
1,333 912

RRERREARAR | —E-NEER 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

10

108

B RS ER AR MY

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the 3 (2018: 3) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

8 EmEFMAL(E)

A LH - 3% (20184 : 3%8) A
TZHMORIETIHERA

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of the Company of RMB179,240,000 (2018:
RMB140,494,000) and 468,750,000 shares (2018: 468,750,000) in
issue as if the Reorganisation and capitalisation issue had been
effective throughout the periods presented.

Diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share
as there were no dilutive potential shares outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

9 BRER

BREABFTREARRFEAFBEA
R 179,240,000t (20184 : A R ¥
140,494,0007T ) X 468,750,000/% & 2% 17
f&1D (20184 : 468,750,000/%) 5+ - %
MEAREREETEREERBRE
R e

R E 220194 %2018 128318 1
FENEEEEBNNBEITEINEG
E it SR E ERFENTFREART -

10 ¥ -BERKRE

2019 2018

20194 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 AR®T T AR FIT

Property, plant and equipment owned HBA&E®E -« BE &R (i) 396,222 419,977
Right-of-use assets FREEE (i) 1,010 3,308
397,232 423,285

Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PN P S B
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % - BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Property, plant and equipment owned (i) BEYX BMERRE
( 0t0 0 0l(l
equipme e e 00 equipme proveme 0ld
MR S = ELRE VEXS i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Cost: B
At 1 January 2018 R018E1A1A 296,453 21,183 202,537 1,086 - 527,259
Additions WE 58,549 6,434 48501 72 1,139 114,695
Disposals RE (1527) (3326) (1.257) = = (6,110)
Written off 1 - - (6,580) - - (6,580)
Transferred to receivables  BRERBTERIETH
under service concession YR
arrangement - (426) - - - (426)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E128318 353475 29,865 243,201 1,158 1,139 628,838
Additions AE 52,017 34 30,309 439 556 83,645
Disposals RE (11,180) (1,985) (8,121) = = (17.286)
A1 December 2019 RuowFAne R 204 29389 1997  16% 695,197
Accumulated depreciation: ~ B3HTE
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1R1A 58,032 12,309 49,791 205 - 120,343
Charged for the year MR 40,599 5005 47410 m = 93,357
Written back on disposals Rt EREE (249) (971) (%4¢) = = (2,166)
Written off 1 - - (2,465) = = (2465)
Written back on transfer to  REEZREGTETHET
receivables under service HENSEREE
concession arrangement = (208) = = = (208)
At 31 December 2018 R018E12A318 98,382 16,155 93,79 528 - 208,861
Charge for the year Rz 45,338 4,997 49,638 30 28 100,601
Written back on disposals REERRE (6,048) (1,885) (2,554) = = (10,487)
At 31 December 2019 RuogEnAyE | wm B Moo o m 1875
Net hook value: BEEFE:
At 31 December 2019 R2019%124318 256,590 8,937 128,509 79 1,467 396,222
At 31 December 2018 R018E128318 255,093 13,710 149,405 630 1,139 419.977
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group RAEBEMEBEME  BE KK
are located in the PRC. BHEARFE -
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

110

(i)

(iii)

Right-of-use assets

The Group has obtained the right to use certain office/
factory buildings through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments. The analysis of the net book
value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset
is as follows:

10 % - BERFRE (&)

(i)

FEREEE
NEBBEHERZAERERS
%Eﬁ#"*/m% HESY—K
B —Z=RAF -BAETHER®RER
REFEEA R ERNE
B -EHERREHEN
R BHBEE B ZFARESE
EFREFESTOT :

0
% 0
) 0 :
o o =
RMB’000
Balance as at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 H KRR 1,885
Additions NE 2,462
Depreciation charge for the year FRTERTIE (1,039)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 and R2018%12 A318 &

1 January 2019 201941 A1 H K &4 58 3,308
Additions = —
Depreciation charge for the year FRFTEFIR (2,298)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 R201912 A31 H K 8458 1,010

Sales and leaseback assets

In 2017, the Group sold some of its machinery and
equipment to external parties and leased them back for
a term of 3 years. The Group determined the transfers to
buyer-lessor were not sales under HKFRS15, thus the
Group continues to recognise the underlying assets, and
recognises financial liabilities for the considerations
received in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 1(g)(i). No gain or loss were recognised from the
sale and leaseback transactions for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amounts of the machinery and equipment under
sale and leaseback transactions were RMB27,279,000 (31
December 2018: RMB30,449,000), which were included in
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the
machinery and equipment pledged for the
aforementioned sale and leaseback transactions were
RMB14,789,000 (31 December 2018: RMB16,346,000).
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53R & #E B 551557 T8 | BT R E BY
HE Wﬁﬁl%%ﬁwmﬁﬁ
B WIR R Q)0 E S B e st
ﬁ%ﬁa%ﬂmﬁﬁﬁ R A e
& o N 220194 %2018 12 A
mamiﬁ%iém@*%ix
T 52 A ) W &= ok BT 18 © 1020194
12A318 - SR HERR HIE T #
MERENEASE I ABAR
m%27,279,0007u(2018£ﬁ12f%31
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10 Y% BERRE (&)
(ivy RECEHEHENEE

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases

During the ordinary course of business, some machinery
and equipment, i.e. tower cranes and construction hoist,
are acquired by the Group for leasing purpose. The
leases typically run for a period of 6 to 12 months, with

an option to renew the lease after renegotiation.

The reconciliation of tower cranes and construction hoist
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018 is as below:

REBXRBHBESR AEEHER
HEBMNBEETESRIEL®
BEEEREEE RFHE—K
RBPARET @A REREKA
& -

ANEEFERE E20194F 20184512
A3BILFEMERERETIRE

RO BRI -
RMB’000
AR®T R

Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2018 M2018%F1H1H 37,839
Additions = 14,250
Disposals BE (33)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 2018F 12 A31H &

2019 1H1H 52,056
Additions NE 19,998
Disposals BE (6,922)
At 31 December2019  R2019%12A8 | 65,132
Accumulated depreciation: REITE -
At 1 January 2018 201851 H1H 13,388
Depreciation for the year FRFTE 5,186
Written back on disposals A S B (] (25)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R2018F 12 A31H &

20191 A18 18,549
Depreciation for the year FAE 6,230
Written back on disposals R &SR E (4,215)
At 31 December 2019 ] R2019F12A310 | 20,564 |
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 44,568
At 31 December 2018 MR2018F12 A31H 33,507
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mREMBRRME
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % - BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases (ivy RESEHSHENEE
(Continued) (%)
Other assets are mainly acquired for the Group’s own AEEFZRBEHERBETE
use for construction projects, but the Group also leases B B A & B - BEAREE IR E
out some of these assets according to customers’ ERPEEFELHMEE THEER
specific needs. Those leases are mainly short-term E-ZEMHEXZARHMES -
leases, with an option to renew the lease after REREEIEMR -
renegotiation.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts R20194F 201812 A31H * 1B
of assets (other than tower cranes and construction BEEHERENEE (BmKkiE
hoist) leased out under operating lease are as follows: ITRERINRESEMAT :
Machinery
and Motor
equipment vehicles Tools Total
B R R A RE IA et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI AR®BTR AR¥®Tn AR%Tx
Net book value: BRTEFE -
At 31 December 2019 1R 2019F12A31H 52,728 4,985 297 58,010
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 46,882 1,600 452 48,934
The Group obtains residual value guarantees from the AEBBERBABGSHGEERE
lessees to reduce the residual asset risks where AR FIgR & =Rk (2i@EA) -
applicable.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

11 BFREE

Cost:
At 1 January 2018
Additions

B
201851 H1H 608
NE 301

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

MR2018F12A31H K&

2019 1H1H 909
Additions = —
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318 | 909
Accumulated amortisation: ZotEes
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1A1H 38
Amortisation for the year FRNEHE 78

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

MR2018F12 A31H &

20191 81H 116
Amortisation for the year ~ FN#EE 91
At 31 December 2019 M2019%F12 A31H 207
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A31H 702
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12H31H 793

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

12 HMtERBEE

Other non-current assets mainly represent prepaid amounts for HEMIERBEEETE AU IBEEMM
acquisition of construction machinery, equipment and tools. BERTEAEMTENK -
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

13 RBARRE
TREMVHAEMES EERARK

EEBERX

=z 8
&

BB AR ZFFE -

Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued and Proportion of
Company name and business paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
TR AR S R BRTR
ARER ES i BRER2FEE BEERLH TEEH
Held by the Held by
Company  a subsidiary
ARAREE WELARRER

Jianzhong Construction PRC RMB168,450,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Technology (B EZREL services
BREFERA)?

BREEPRERNE H AR #168,450,0007T RERERS
BEREEAQA"?

Fujian Jianzhong Engineering PRC RMB30,000,000 — 100% Production, sale, installation
Equipment Co., Ltd. (fRE% and leasing of construction
EHRIRREERAR) machinery, equipment and

tools and construction
material

BREABPIEREFBRAR H AR #30,000,0007T EE - HE RRERAERE

B SERIAREM

Fujian Jianzhong Logistic Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB29,400,330 — 100% Provision of goods
(BEETMRERAF) transportation services

BEERMRAERAR H AR #29,400,3307C REEMERRS

Fujian Jianzhong Environmental PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Sewage treatment operations
Technology Co., Ltd.

(RRERPRERE
BRAR)

BRARPRABMBERAR H AR #50,000,0007T AR T

Notes: B &

1. The official names of the entities are in Chinese. The English 1. PXEBAREEARE  RXREHR

names are for identification purpose only.

2. The entity was previously known as 1@ 2 A 2R BHE D B IR
‘A7], and on 25 February 2019, the entity was converted into a
limited liability company and changed its name to f@iE2H &

MEEREMERF.

3 All the PRC subsidiaries disclosed above are limited liability

companies.
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FEMBEHRERME
14 INVENTORIES 78
019 2018
019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREEF T
Materials w7t 10,769 14,907
Consumables FEM 7,000 21,169
Finished goods pq= 3,883 2,607
Work in progress E2 4,909 3,896
26,561 42,579
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 15 EHNEERGHEE
LIABILITIES
(@) Contract assets (@) BHEE
019 2018
019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AREEF T
Arising from performance under BRESNBNEER
construction contracts BREE 490,201 254,842
Receivables from contracts with B E B B 15 R S 2R
customers within the scope of E155EEE R B F A
HKFRS 15, which are included in [2 5 Kk EH AU EIE | /Y
“Trade and other receivables” RERF A LR ERFIE
(Note 16) (FfF5E16) 277,019 227,167

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet reached
the milestones for billing at the reporting date. The
Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once milestones are reached. The
Group also typically agrees to a retention for 3% to 5%
of the contract value. The retention period normally
ranges from one to two years upon the completion of
work. This amount is included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

BHEETREAKERNER
B =TERREIMAZER
BROTIRERKRIBOHKESR
B AEENZESOTEEN
REEE  BRNEKBEEE
SUAE B R A HA R A R BRI A
Ko AEE—RIRGVEEN3%
ES%HEERSE - ERHABER
TRERE-EMF -BHRAE
B BB AR RIA R T A%
B TREEEIENEBRK -
MR E R RA - HESRE
FARKEE -
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15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

116

(@)

(b)

Contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of contract assets
that was expected to be recovered after more than one
year were RMB162,115,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB124,200,000).

Contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

During the years ended 31 December 2019, the amount
of revenue recognised from performance obligations
satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods is
RMB3,308,000 (2018: RMB nil).

15

BRNEERGHNEAE (H)

(@)

EHNEE (&)

R2019F12 8318 » FBHE —F 14
AREEHNEENSER/RARE
162,115,0007T (20184 12 A 31
B : AR¥124,200,0007T) °

EHMAENKSEGSE  GOE
EEAE 5 RWFHA -

HE2019F12A31BIEFEE -
BAEBRE K (B0 X)) BL
EEMERNKELEDRAA
[R#3,308,0007T (20184 : AR
ZIT) °

Contract liabilities by EHEE
019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARBTIT

Billings in advance for construction 284 %)~ FaUkBR X

contracts 13,232 5,117
Sales deposits received BEWEEES 90 6
13,322 5,123

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced
consideration received from customers, for which
revenue is recognised based on the progress of the
provision of related services.

For the vyear ended 31 December 2019, revenue
recognised in the year that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was
RMB4,834,000 (2018: RMB160,000).
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RARBREM
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EFRHMEWRIE
019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREEF T
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance & 5 FEUFIE (F1B1E %
AEf)
— third parties —%=h 350,740 251,742
— related parties (Note 28(c)) — B 5 (FYEE28(c)) 3,402 7,787
Bills receivable R EE 73,700 59,539
Prepayments to suppliers ) £ i 72 1 (0 A TR S 3R 27,642 22,691
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk Ba BS: 5 SRR
(Note 28(c)) (FF5E28(c)) 1,368 2,024
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFRIA 19,657 21,507
476,509 365,290

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of deposits expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one
year is RMB3,000,000 (2018: RMB3,000,000). All of the other
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

As part of its normal business, the Group has entered into
certain factoring agreements with certain banks and factoring
companies. As at 31 December 2019, outstanding trade
receivables of RMB556,249,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB241,054,000) were transferred to certain banks or factoring
companies in accordance with non-recourse factoring
agreements, and the corresponding trade receivables were
derecognised as the directors are of the opinion that the
substantial risks and rewards associated with the trade
receivables have been transferred and therefore these
receivables were qualified for derecognition.

As at 31 December 2019, outstanding commercial acceptance
bills of RMB52,477,000 (31 December 2018: RMB58,145,000)
were endorsed to certain suppliers with recourse and were not
derecognised. The associated liabilities with the same amount
were included in trade and other payables (Note 20).

M2019E12 A318 @ FBEIENBIBE—F
BB THERAERAIHNZESER
A K #3,000,0007C (20184F : A R #&
3,000,0007t) ° Fi B EthE 5 & E b fE
WHRBEAER —FRKERERE
FX o

EAASBNETERN—D &
BB s TRITRREARGI YA TR
B o 20196128318 » €5 AA
R #556,249,0007T (2018128318 :
AR #241,054,0007T) B iE R BEEE 5
EUGRIEREEERERERREET
ETRITHRERR  BHEEF R
RIBLIEER  AREEMRAEE S
JE WS R TE AR B8 /O BB K JE B ER [0 3R B 82
% Btz ERBGIAT A K EERH
B o

R2019%F 128318 @A AR
52,477,000 (2018412 A318 : AR
#558,145,0007T) KR EE R FE AR ZE
mETHERSE (ERE)  WARK
IEER - AR eBENEBaET AR
2 & E S 508 (BFEE20) ©
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

118

(CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on date of progress certificates or
date of issuance of bills and net of loss allowance, is as
follows:

16

B REMEVRE(A)

AR o AT

RBEHR - REEER B PAFRERN
ARMO B NRIERERGNE S RK
REMERERE GTAB S REMEK
R EREE DTN T ¢

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Within 1 month EN 93,800 72,211

More than 1 month but within 3 months 1231 A 106,109 113,222

More than 3 months but within 6 months 3Z 61 A 109,068 72,526
More than é months but within 12 6= 1218 A

months 100,055 45,741

More than 12 months BiE121E A 18,810 15,368

427,842 319,068

Trade receivables are practically due within 90 or 180 days
from the date of progress certificates. Further details on the
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 26(a).
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17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17 R4S ELZHIE THWEKRR
ARRANGEMENT b1 |
In January 2018, the Group entered into a service agreement to R2018F 1A " A"EB RN RER B S
provide sewage treatment service in Changle District. Details of VEKEIRARTSET RIS ek - BAR S
the Group’s service concession arrangement for providing BIR M5 /KERIE RS W RIS AT = Bk

sewage treatment service are listed below:

Term of concession rights
3 HABR

Rights to use specific assets

ERREEENEN
Pricing
T8

Minimum sewage treatment
volume guaranteed
REBEZEKFKEESE

Responsibilities

Term of termination
K IEERMR

Obligations to deliver specified
assets at the end of the
concession period

RETEARINEEEERN
B

Term of renewal
E SN

MBI

Till 30 April 2030
HZE2030%4H30H

All relevant sewage treatment infrastructure
i B 18 B8 5 7K B 38 3% Bt

Initial sewage treatment unit tariff price is set out in the relevant service
agreement. Non-routine review of sewage treatment unit tariff price is
conducted upon change in production costs or additional capital expenditure
incurred due to compliance with new environmental requirements
VKB E RN EEHINNEERG R - KRB EEBNIETREHN
AEERANEREEIHRNBENRBERMELERIINE RN RET

40,000 tonnes per day
X 40,0008

During the concession period, the Group shall:

REFETHE AR - AR EA :

e Maintain the sewage treatment facilities and operation of sewage treatment
SRR B R R A & 5K R I

Monitor water quality

EfEKE

Disclose to the public the relevant tap water supply parameters, including
quality, supply pressure and other service measures

s MAREEBNKEENHELLY - BIEKE  KEREMREEE

Upon expiry of the concession period
FrF i A e m 2

At the end of the concession period, the Group is obliged to deliver all the
relevant sewage treatment infrastructure to the Grantor at nil consideration

REFFRPR  AEEARERR T A RXNMEHEBSKEEERRE

Not determined
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17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17 R4S HE T WEWRR

ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED) 15 (8#])
The Group's receivables under service concession arrangement AEBEW R SKEE RGBS ELHEIR
in respect of sewage treatment service concession THEWRIERIIOT

arrangement are as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT
Non-current portion JERNHR &L & 32,909 36,753
Current portion BN EAEE 5 17,436 9,249
50,345 46,002
Expected collection schedule is as FRETUREREF R R T ¢
follows:
Within 1 year 1A 17,436 9,249
After 1 year but within 5 years 1E54%F 14,478 14,656
After 5 years but within 10 years 5108 17,326 17,586
After 10 years 10 LA TR 1,105 4,511
50,345 46,002
The effective interest rate for the above financial assets was Ll FEENEBRFRNER3.85% °
3.85% per annum.
18 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18 ZRFVRITAEER
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
Pledged deposits [REEEiREEN 2,727 2,235
As at 31 December 2019, these deposits were pledged to R2019F 128318 © ZEGFERBEET
banks as security for bills payable (Note 20). RITIE R ER RIE AR (FT5E20) o
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

19

Cash at bank and on hand RITMAFHERS

BEeRRESEYRHMGRSE
REEHR
@ BERREFEWEHE:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T

102,968 93,772

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

At 31 December 2019, cash and deposits that were
placed with banks in the mainland China amounted to
RMB102,889,000 (31 December 2018: RMB93,772,000).
Remittance of funds out of mainland China is subject to
the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

RITBEESREBETARITERN X
BHAFE B REREUA S - )17
RHRERRNEERFAOHER
HIRDEREVERTT o

M2019E12 A318 @ F WA F
AIRITHIR S RTRAEARE
102,889,0007t (20184 12 A 31
H : AR#93,772,0007T) ° #t &
B A 3 [ HH R IB B 8 ST P B
FE R Y N PE B R Bl K2 AR o
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BeRkAeSBEYRAEMRE

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19

122

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

REER (E)
(b) BAFBHEKLEREBREZ
¥R -

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & ARE T ARBF T
Operating activities ReEFTH
Profit before taxation B A 208,322 176,981
Adjustments for: F IS EEL AR
Depreciation of property, BEWE  BWE KK
plant and equipment HWARGAERE
owned and right-of-use e
assets 5(c) 102,899 94,396
Amortisation 5y 5(c) 91 78
(Gain)/loss on disposal of BEYME BEK
property, plant and R (),
equipment &8 4 (1,509) 907
Loss on property, plant and MM - BE R
equipment written off RIEREE 5(c) — 4,115
Impairment losses on trade B 5 & E e WK
and other receivables FEHEERE
and contract assets B8 5(C) 20,808 15,496
Finance costs B & B AN 5(a) 17,363 9,121
Changes in working capital: EELESED
Decrease/(increase) in BERL,(3Em)
inventories 16,018 (12,751)
Increase in contract assets BHEEL I (246,153) (118,356)
Increase in trade and other B 5 Kk H A e W sk IE
receivables 20 (115,160) (212,213)
Increase in receivables RIS T ELBEIE T
under service concession R FE YR IR L N
arrangement (4,343) (45,784)
(Increase)/decrease in PR B R 17 A fR
restricted bank balances (3% hn),/ k> (492) 2,003
Increase in trade and other B 5 Rk E M FE R RIE
payables 30 132,037 167,368
Increase in contract AR BB
liabilities 8,199 4,956
Cash generated from REmBRE
operations 138,080 86,317
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

19

BeRkAeSEYRAEMRE

3=
AL

()

BEH (H)

%ﬁ%ﬁﬁEEWEEZﬂ
TREFI A EEREEEHMES
MAEzEEH (BRERERIRS
BE) B - WEBABZRSR
BELAAKRSHEBERA
EENGARERERTHER
MEEHRELORESNE A
ZRREBRATHELNAE -

i i =3 #H 3] >
B’000 B’000 B’000 B'000 B’000 B’000
0
ote 0 0 0 0 0 b 0 & 0
GE)
[/ 0 ¢ 0 ¢ b B

At 1 January 2019 M2019%1 818 122,751 105 13,872 3,693 34,948 13,961 189,330
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRBEHRNEE :
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFTENE 153,210 — — — - — 153,210
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (160,751) — - - - — (160,751)
Interests paid on bank loans and other B RITERRE M E R

borrowings M2 - (13,525) - - - - (13,525)
Payments of lease liabilities XAREERE — — — (1,691) - — (1,691)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEEENSHS — (180) — — — - (180)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by U B RBAREZ

instalments (DE — — — — (28,779) — (28,779)
Interests paid on acquisition of equipment by S ERHBALZEZ

instalments BAFE — (2,413) - - — - (2,413)
Payments for capital element of obligations ERAER HEEREN

arising from sale and leaseback BERBHHR

transactions — — — — - (9,425) (9,425)
Interest element of obligations arising from sale &4 M=% 5 & £ AEN

and leaseback transactions FEHD — (933) — — — — (933)
Advances from related parties BB 7 B R — — 25,972 — - — 25,972
Repayments to related parties YT ER — — (38,127) — — - (38,127)
Transactions with shareholders during the SHERHARTETH

Reorganisation 25 - - (4,125) - - — (4,125)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSMEHRG

SE L (7,541) (17,051) (16,280) (1,691) (28,779) (9,425) (80,767)

Other changes: Hitt 25 :
Acquisition of equipment by instalments PR YN - - - - 26,649 — 26,649
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FlEX H (FE5() — 17,363 — — — - 17,363
Payables to shareholders due to Reorganisation & 4 f FE {1 i R 78 — — 4,125 - - — 4,125
Others Hoth, - - (1,717) - (2,146) — (3,863)
Total other changes HiZHast — 17,363 2,408 - 24,503 - 44,274
At 31 December 2019 H2019F128318 115,210 417 - 2,002 30,672 4,536 152,837
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

BeRkAeSBEYRAEMRE
REER (&)

19

124

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () MEITBMELNEGEZY
. . . e . =
financing activities (Continued) ik (&)
Obligations
Payables for arising from
Amounts due acquisition of sale and
Interest to related Lease equipment by leaseback Other
Bank loans payable parties liabilities  instalments  transactions  borrowings Total
LAS BB 3R
FE A A 7 BARBN SREDRS
BIER RIS A HERE BARE EENRB HEibfa R AF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTRT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR
(Note
(Note 21(a)) (Note 20) (Note 20)  (Note 21(b)) 20 & 24)  (Note 21(c)
(B %20
(FHi#F21(a)) (Ff3£20) (FiiE20)  (FiE21(0) %24)  (HEE21(c)
At 1 January 2018 H2018F1818 109,187 68 1,951 1,946 44,800 23,246 6,500 187,698
Changes from financing MERSRETRNED
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank loans BITERFEFE 220,834 = = = = = = 220,834
Repayment of bank loans BERRITER (207,270) — — — — — — (207,270)
Interests paid on bank loans BRRITERFE — (4,366) — — — — = (4,366)
Payments of lease liabilities IRBEEE — — - (715) — — — (715)
Interest element of lease HERENSHS
liabilities - (149) — — — — — (149)
Payment for acquisition of PAS HA REE AR 2 R
equipment by instalments = = = = (18,843) = = (18,843)
Interests paid on acquisition of A EINREBAREZEN
equipment by instalments FlE = (2,669) = = = = = (2,669)
Payments for capital element of ~ &#MEER HEEAENE
obligations arising from sale AEBA R
and leaseback transactions = = = = = (9,285) = (9,285)
Interest element of obligations ~ &&ME X 5 E£EER
arising from sale and FEHD
leaseback transactions = (1,900) = = = = = (1,900)
Advances from related parties vt = = 261,664 = = = = 261,664
Repayments to related parties ) R Bt 7 3B K = = (220,257) — = = = (220,257)
Repayments of other borrowings & E b g — - — — - - (6,500) (6,500)
Total changes from financing BERSMEHRG
cash flows ELER 13,564 (9,084) 41,407 (715) (18,843) (9,285) (6,500) 10,544
Other changes: Htt#® .
New leases HHE = = = 2,462 = = = 2,462
Acquisition of equipment by LA BB RREE AR 4B
instalments — — — — 9,853 — — 9,853
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FS X (i E5() — 9,121 — — — — — 9,121
Commercial bills endorsed AEBEZR — — (31,210) = (862) = = (32,072)
Others Hfty = = 1,724 = = = = 1,724
Total other changes — 9121 (29,486) 2,462 8,991 — — (8,912)

At 31 December 2018

R2018512A318

122,751

13,872

3,693 34,948

189,330
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Significant non-cash transactions:

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
acquired equipment with an aggregate cost of
RMB26,649,000 (2018: 9,853,000) by instalments.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
endorsed commercial bills of RMB nil (2018:
RMB31,210,000) to certain related parties to settle
advances from the corresponding related parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
endorsed commercial bills of RMB2,146,000 (2018:
RMB862,000) to certain suppliers to settle corresponding
payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments.

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

19

RERDR

BERS R

Within operating cash flows

=
Within financing cash flows =

BeRkAeSEYRAEMRE

3=
AL

(d)

(e)

BEH (H)

BEXFBEERS :
REE2019F 128318 IEFE -
AEEUDHNREARZE 2
AR B A R 26,649,0007T (2018
& AR%9,853,0007T) °

REE2019F12 8318 IEFE -
AEBRETHEBEAEEARE
Z 7 (20184 : A R #31,210,000
T0) MR - LA S E R

REZE2019F12831HIEFE -
AEEMETHEREEARK
2,146,0007T (20184 : A R #&
862,0007T) W X 15 - A&
TEED B R ARER MR
I o

HERS R L AE
HARERSRERNSEAR
m -

2018
20184
RMB’'000
ki ARBTT

(40,595)
1,871)

(33,546)
(864)

(42,466) (34,410)

These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid.
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mEMBHRRME
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ESRHMEMNRE
019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR T I
Trade payables 5 RN RIE
— third parties —EBRNE=H 304,871 265,871
— related parties (Note 28(c)) — FERTEEEE T (B 5E28() — 13
Bills payable AN 53,787 19,851
Payables to suppliers of property plant — FEf#2  BE K&
and equipment e P 3 IE 39,813 70,920
Payables for acquisition of equipment by A% HA{s 7k B8 A 2% #5 1O FE 1+t
instalments — current portion KIE — ENEE 21,471 29,488
Other payables and accruals H i B < 5RIB K FE FT 3R I8 108,523 40,336
Obligation for bills endorsed with BEZENEEZRAT
recourse 52,477 58,145
Interest payable eI B 417 105
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 BB B 75 SRR
(Note 28(c)) (FF5E28(C)) — 13,872
581,359 498,601
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the other trade and R20194F 2018 12A318 * Fr & &
other payables are expected to be settled within one year or 8 5 R E MR FRIBRER —F R
are repayable on demand. BERIEERKET AT -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of HEREHR  REZAH 5B
trade and bills payable (which are included in trade and other o2 BSRNFERENER (B2
payables), based on the invoice date/transaction date, is as EESREMEAREBEZR) ZEREKED
follows: M
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETIT
Within 1 month ME AR 78,095 87,340
More than 1 month but within 3 months 11 B Z & 3{& A LA K 90,964 79,251
More than 3 months but within 6 months 318 A 2 & 618 A LA R 99,036 62,487
More than 6 months but within 12 618 B 2 %1218 A AR
months 47,579 40,681
More than 12 months 128 A 2% 42,984 15,976
358,658 285,735
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 21 EXRERER
019 2018
019 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 R ARBF T
Non-current JE BN EA
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BER (@) 64,089 -
Lease liabilities HEARE (b) 403 1,091
Obligations arising from sale and EEREDRZFEENET
leaseback transactions (©) — 4,536
e 64492 | 5,627
Current BN &A
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BER (a) 51,121 122,314
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — EER (a) — 437
Lease liabilities HEAR (b) 1,599 2,602
Obligations arising from sale and EERADRIEENET
lease back transactions (© 4,536 9,425
s I 57,256 | 134,778
Total @t 121,748 140,405
(a) Bank loans (@ MITER
Bank loans were repayable as follows: RITEFERLHWN AR
019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREEF T
Less than 1 year —F A 51,121 122,751
1 to 2 years —EWFE 64,089 =
115,210 122,751

As at 31 December 2019, bank loans of RMB115,210,000

were all

secured by pledged properties of an

independent property developer, among which bank loan
of RMB44,000,000 was also guaranteed by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

BRERBRARAT / —2-NFFR

R2019%F12 8318  SRITERA
R #115,210,0007C 9 LA — B B 32
MERBE2ERYWEERIK
HOHERBRBETERARE
44,000,0007C IR AR 7] 2 2
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

128

Bank loans (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, bank loan of RMB19,880,000
was guaranteed by the Controlling Shareholder of the
Group and his spouse and secured by certain properties
owned by the Controlling Shareholder of the Group, bank
loan of RMB44,000,000 was guaranteed by the Controlling
Shareholder of the Group and/or his spouse and secured
by pledged properties of an independent property
developer, and bank loans of RMB58,434,000 were
secured by the pledge of trade receivables of
RMB58,434,000.

Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

21

BEXRkEMR(E)

(@) IRITEX(E)
MR2018F 128318 » SRITERA
R #19,880,0007T F A~ 58 @752 AR A%
RRHEEBREERLNEES
METYEERER  RITEXK
A R #44,000,0007T B 7% £ [H 442 A%
B s BB BRI A
— MBI EREE 2 ERYE
ERETH MIPTERARK
58,434,000 LA B & A R &
58,434,0007T H) & 5 & W k18 &
TERIE -

(b) HESE
AAH — REREHRDR

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

Less than 1 year —F N 1,649 2,783

1 to 2 years —E=WFE 375 738

2 to 5 years MZERF 45 420

Total undiscounted lease liabilities RELIRFAE B FE42%E 2,069 3,941

Less: total future interest expenses & : &R F| .5 258 (67) (248)
Lease liabilities included in the PN LT

consolidated statements of HEEE
financial position 2,002 3,693

Maturity analysis — present value of lease liabilities

FHom — HEEENRE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARETFIT

Less than 1 year —FR 1,599 2,602
1 to 2 years —EME 359 688
2 to 5 years MERF 44 403
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEMNRE 2,002 3,693
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21

(c)

Obligations arising from sale and leaseback
transactions

Obligations arising from sale and leaseback transactions
were repayable as below:

ERREMR(E)

(c)

EREAERZEENER

ERMAORZFEENEBFNER
ZHMT

019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARBF T
Less than 1 year —F R 4,951 10,440
110 2 years —ZWF — 4,951
Total undiscounted obligations RUMBERBEEIRSGEE
arising from sale and leaseback 1545
transactions 4,951 15,391
Less: total future interest expenses & @ AR F B 5 X 4258 (415) (1,430)
Obligations arising from sale and T AGEHBERRARNER
leaseback transactions included HERXRZEENE®E
in the consolidated statements of
financial position 4,536 13,961

Maturity analysis — present value of obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions

HBMoM — ERERRZELEN
ERHRE

019 2018

0194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

R ARBFIT

Less than 1 year —FR 4,536 9,425

1 to 2 years —EMF — 4,536
Present value of obligations arising &% Bz 5 &E £/

from sale and leaseback HBHRAE
transactions 4,536 13,961

As at 31 December 2019, obligations arising from sale
and leaseback transactions of RMB1,686,000 (31
December 2018: RMB5,519,000) were secured by
underlying assets with carrying values of RMB14,789,000
(31 December 2018: RMB16,346,000) respectively as
mentioned in Note 10(iii). All the obligations arising from
sale and leaseback transactions for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 were guaranteed by the
Controlling Shareholder of the Group and entities
controlled by him. The aforementioned guarantees were
released before the Company’s listing on the Stock
Exchange on 18 March 2020.

BRERBRARAT / —2-NFFR

MR2019512 A31H - €& AER
SEENEEARE,686,0005T
(201812 A31H : AR ¥
5,519,00070) A EEEI(E & A R &
14,789,0007T (2018F 12 H318 :
A R #16,346,0007T) HI1H R & &=
YEHE 8 (L0 Bt = 10Gi) ATt ) - B =
20194 & 20184F 12 A31H Ik F
B ERHELDRXSELENAER
7% 35 R 7N 5 [ 92 AR AR BR R 4
R EEEER - Eal E{RE 722020
F3A18H AR RIFEEE R BT Al
iRk o
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B RS ER AR MY

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the participating
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

22

23

PRC corporate income tax payable FEftHr B TS5

EERKER

R HE R MG E
RIFPEMBES TRARER  AEE
1A R B O BT B 2 )22 B g o B0 T IR A
B 48 48 0 T R FOR KRB A ET 8 (T5F
2 BHAKEBERESEERTE
B —E B 2 LR [A &K o 5 BT
HELENRAEEZMRREZEE

BE-

BR £l RSN - AN S AR A L At B T 8B
BRENBERNERARERHSES -

REUHRRRANFER

@) RSB TRAKEDEAHR
HiE

2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREEFTT
12,238 38,401

Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRME
23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 EEMBRREZANFRED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) FEE PIELEHRIBEEERE
=
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () ErEHEEERABEBHNSHA
and liabilities EJ?."B’J'J‘E’JQEB
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE BB R NFERE
recognised in the consolidated statement of LL%RIEQE/(EE)E’JQ\H

(i)

financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising Credit loss Construction

from: allowances costs
FEEX

EEHRERR i EEMA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®TR

FRER D AR S AN TS

Depreciation Others

Eiil

Hity |F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®BTR AR®TxR

At 1 January 2018 ®2018F 1418 3,168 2,949 2,121 497 8,735
Credited/(charged) to REEANFTAS

profit or loss (%) 3,882 967 (12,545) 593 (7,103)
At 31 December 2018 #20184E12 A 31 H

and 1 January 2019 K2019F1 818 7,050 3,916 (10,424) 1,090 1,632
Effect on deferred tax OISk Eﬁﬁﬁ

balances resulting from THEERZ %

a change in tax rate (B FE6(D) i) )

(Note 6(b)iii) (2,781) (1,566) 3,839 (208) (716)
Credited/(charged) to REBERFAS

profit or loss (%) 3,214 4,775 (4,926) 52 3,115
At 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A318 7,483 7,125 (11,511) 934 4,031

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

(i) BEESHBRRROH K

019 2018
019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
55 AR F T
Net deferred tax asset RERE B S AR R N IERR B
recognised in the EIETI IR & S
consolidated statement of
financial position 4,031 1,632
BRRERREARAT  —B-NEER 131




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

23

24

132

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with Note 1(p), the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of RMB2,373,000 (2018: RMB324,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses expire within five
years under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2019, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB35,460,000 (31 December 2018: RMB19,805,000) in
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating to
the undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based
on the assessment made by management as at the end
of each of the reporting period, it was determined that
the undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries would not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities represent the non-current portion
of payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments. For

the

year ended 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate

of the payables is 7.2% (2018: 7.2%).
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mEMBRRRANAEHR

(d)

)

AERELEHEBEE
RIEMI ()« NEBW AT RET
FREEEARK2373,0005T
(20184F : AR#324,0007T) #ERR
RERBEE  AAERBHB
RIEEERERERTAAEES
Al &) A It &5 B 18 A R R B AR B i
o BIBRITH L HEBER
AEREIH -

ABREZEHEARE
M2019FE12 A318 » IF £ 5t B K
A7) BB A B R B E AR
B A B AR B TE A M R IR
18 B & A R#35,460,0007T (2018
F12H31H : A K #¥19,805,000
70)  RABRRARIEHZEHBA
AIMBREREK BEEEEBERE
wEHRELHFTG  ERER
A BB E A B R R DR F B
RA] AR S HETDIR ©

HikEREBEE
HiERSBBIEUAD AN REARE
MM FIERIERBE 5 © B E20194F
128318 ILEE - BAFENEEREF R
57.2% (20184F : 7.2%) °
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

(b)

(c)

25 EX - RERKE

Movements in components of equity (@ EZWBILH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBIRE B S IEN BT & E
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated NEERE BRI NIFEEEm
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of K oREVEFAREME AR A
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the A A 18 71| IE B /9 & EhEF 1B S5 40
Company'’s individual components of equity between the T~
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Exchange Accumulated
Company capital reserve losses Total
b YN B & 5 & ZEEER &5t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt ARBFIT AREFT AR®FT AR®T
Balance as at 5 February 7"201952H5
2019 (date of B (MR
incorporation) HHA) B4 ek — — — —
Change in equity for 2019:  A2019F M
2E:
Loss for the period HREE — — (968) (968)
Other comprehensive income H 2 E Uz = 4 = 4
Total comprehensive income % Y25 4258 = 4 (968) (964)
Issuance of new shares BITHNIR 25(c) = = = =
At 31 December 2019 R 20194
128318 —* 4 (968) (964)
& The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. i ZEEHREETEARE1,000
7_E o
Dividends by EKE
The Board has resolved not to propose any dividend for EE2RATHEZE2019F12 8
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). 31H Lk F E R E A A% 2 (2018
F ) o
Share capital (0 B=A

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company under the laws of the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 5 February 2019 with authorised share
capital of HK$390,000 divided into 39,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. On the same date, one share was allotted
and issued, credited as fully paid.

The Reorganisation was completed on 21 May 2019. The
share capital in the consolidated statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 represented the paid-
up capital of Jianzhong Construction Technology and the
share capital as at 31 December 2019 represented the
share capital of the Company.

BRERBRARAT / —2-NFFR

KRABR2019%F2 ASHIBERR S
BEFEFMR L AEREER
EERF  JAE R A390,0007%
I * 9 /39,000,0000% & A% mE &
0.0 HIMR D - AR R E B A
BREBITTIRMRG - ARSI AR
HERE -

EHE N2019F5A21B T ¢
RE ISR R R T 5 52018 12
HA31B 8RR AR Th i+ 2 B e
EHRA - mR2019F12A31H
)= NN L= 7 N
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Nature and purpose of reserves

134

(d)

@

(i)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

o Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution on 5
December 2018, the paid-in capital of
Jianzhong Construction Technology was
increased by RMB37,000,000. An investor
injected a total amount of RMB103,600,000,
and the premium of RMB66,600,000 over
nominal share value arising from the capital
injection was credited into capital reserve.

o Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution on 24
January 2019, the paid-in capital of Jianzhong
Construction Technology was increased by
RMB20,450,000. Two investors injected a total
amount of RMB92,025,000 and the premium
of RMB71,575,000 over nominal share value
arising from the capital injections was
credited into capital reserve.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries established and operated in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their
profit after tax (after offsetting prior year losses), as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to offset
prior years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into capital provided that the balance of the
reserve after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the entity’s registered capital.
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25 BX - HERRKRE (&)
RENMEEREDN

(d)

@

(i)

ERfRE
BARBEBENAT

. B HE2018F 12 A5
HZBERZE &2
FERMENE &
AN T AR
37,000,000 » — %
WEFEFTRERE
BRI EEARYE
103,600,0007T * & E
BEENMBRGOEER
8 A R # 66,600,000
TCABRS| B A

. R #E 201941 824
HozRERZE 2
FEEIRENES
R AE 0T AR
20,450,0007¢ ° M £
KEEABFTEEA
R #92,025,0007T °
EEXTEEENRRK
HEEZEARE
71,575,0007C A B& 7]
RENRGEE -

EERE
REBEFBUERNBE  AQ
AE A B AR 7 R 45 ) T 8B
REAERIZ R B &5 ER
EEMBENE(EHHELE
FRIER) H10%8 7 EE
B M EARES0% - R FA
ERREREENRREZ
RIS B2 IR R

AT B R R 8 A
FFEEREE (0F) - WA
EIEEN(FIIREZIEER
BRRESRETMENE ST
B EAE25%) o
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(d)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Special reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, a reserve
for production safety is required to be set up and
to be appropriated at a fixed rate on the revenue
of the subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC. The reserve can be utilised for expenses or
capital expenditures incurred in connection with
production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of entities incorporated
outside mainland China. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 1(s).

Other reserve

Oon 7 May 2019, in connection with the
Reorganisation, Mr. Xun Minghong and a number of
shareholders (collectively the “then shareholders”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Fujian Jianzhong Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd.
(“Jianzhong Investment Consultancy”), an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which the then shareholders transferred 100%
equity interest in Jianzhong Construction
Technology to Jianzhong Investment Consultancy, in
exchange for 1% additional equity interest in
Jianzhong Investment Consultancy respectively.

On 16 May 2019, Fujian lJianzhong Corporate
Management Co., Ltd. entered into an equity
transfer agreement with the then shareholders to
acquire the 1% equity interest in Jianzhong
Investment Consultancy for an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB4,125,000. The
difference between the historical carrying value of
paid-in capital of Jianzhong Construction
Technology amounting to RMB168,450,000 and the
consideration payable to the then shareholders was
transferred into other reserve.

25 BX - HERRKRES (E)
RENEER BN (F)

(d)

BHERERERAE /| —F-NFFEH

(iii)

(iv)

)

HEEE
RIBHBEPBEDER - N&E
ARLLRHEERE 1R
[E] E 1) 2= LA A £2 [ 70 7R B K
ST BB X B H) U s A o
ZHEAIRAREREEER
BRI EAT L -

BE 5 7

R FEEERRERTEA
BE ST SN M AR SZ B B BB B 75
WRAELEMAAINEZ
B R ABREM TS
HNSFHRER -

H i 1E
)‘5%2019&5)%75 CHER
T HRBAEAEREER
%(ﬁﬁﬂ“ﬂwﬂiﬁJ)Eﬁih
i’ék'#*iému@ﬁﬁﬁ
([BHREEZA] AR
—HEE2ENER 7)§T
_Lﬂﬁﬁéﬁnﬁﬁ%u% TFJH: ':E'l;
RS EPESBIENS
HREEZETEPREH
# - A D B ER R 1R B
1% HIER MR A o

M201945H168 -
BERMEERBRARNEE
Hvﬂﬁ%.ﬁiﬁﬂ%é@iuﬁjfm%
LAMEE 2 R I B R 1%
K mREHNBARE
4,125,0007T ° EHEREHE
BEREANBEREEAR
168,450,000 7T £2 & i &
RGN E 2 HME5E8
AE b -

%E i% %‘
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

136

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and
payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments)
less cash and cash equivalents.

25 BX - FERKRE (&)

(e)

EXREHE
AEEEAREENETEZRERR
BASENSELERN BB
A N IR TS BB E BRI AR R AV
BRLASEXNANESRE - #
REERBRREEDE  BEM
MR ARREE BIE M af

AEEERERRATLEEREER
RRE  ERREFKFAIES
KOESBEREHREZRZOE AR
RS BE TS R Y 2 BR AR [B 2 R 4E
BYE YRELERRNE(L
BEARBELHAE -

AEBRBEARFREESLL
Bt FRAEAET/REEAR(E
B BREREEFRARBERE
DN BRERREFEY

019 2018

0194 20184

B’000 RMB'000

R M ARET T

Loans and borrowings BERRER 121,748 140,405
Payables for acquisition of LA BR {5 SR8 A GR A R FE 1+

equipment by instalments SKIE 30,672 34,948

Sub-total NEE 152,420 175,353

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERREEEY (102,968) (93,772)

Net debt HAERE 49,452 81,581

Equity e 824,132 556,988

Net debt to capital ratio FEERSLE 6.0% 14.6%
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period,
62.2% (2018: 53.1%) and 85.2% (2018: 79.2%) of the total
trade receivables and contract assets was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. As at 31 December 2019, 74.2% (2018:
80.6%) of bills receivable were issued by one of the five
largest customers, which comprises of several
subsidiaries of a listed real estate developer. These are
commercial bills with a maturity of 6 or 12 months.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are practically due
within 90 or 180 days from the issuance of progress
certificates. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables, bills receivable, contract assets and
receivables under service concession arrangement at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

26

EEREERAFE

AEBEREKBEREPEELEESE R
Bt MEREERR - AEE @R
ZERARARAEBRARNEEZFRAR
MM SRR EEBR M ERETINT

(@)

BHERERERAE /| —F-NFFEH

EERR
AEENEERREIEREES
BWHE BUREEIEOE
E-EEECHEFERE L
EREEZLESEERR -

AEEMNEERREFEXRBRE
FHERSEMIERPE EKATE
TEHNFE Al AEEXE
EAERERN R F B RNE KRR
KREARESETHNEERR - R
HREH KR 62.2% (20184 :
53.1%) }.85.2% (20184F : 79.2%)
MESRBRERERENEE
DAREAEEZRATEFERAK
P - R2019F12H318 -
74.2% (2018 4F : 80.6%) HY & Y =
ERAAEFMEFR—BEFP®
ToEBE— R LETEHERRE
BRZRXMBAR - ZEEEE
BErEmi A6 1218 A - FiEE
EXFHEETEESENR
F - HAETENEENG - 1t
EXHAERERF BN RE
SRERMZAEN TEBERF
B4 B B R K B 5 P 2E TS P R 4K
EREAENER - B EIKK
HER B %55 EERE0K
180AMEH - REBEBETSH
BPRESIEIER -

AEBREANFEREHREER
BANETHETEEHRWFIA
RKRRE ANEENRBF
BZHIR T EYGEMIRERE
B LABBREREGE -BRA
SENELEEBRERIARRK
PATAREFPENERRAFER
EER AKETREPEMNIE
REBRIFE—FED -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(@ Credit risk (Continued)

26 EEREERAVHEE)

(@)

As receivables under service concession arrangement are
due from local government authority with no history of
default, the Group considers the credit risk for
receivables under service concession arrangement to be

insignificant.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables, bills receivable and contract assets:

EERRE (&)

F 7 AR 755 455 R A e BE TR T RO R UR
RIE R U 5 BRIF #E SR R
BENEL AEERS  RHK
Fr et HRIR T B B WA R S

SERBIYFERX -

TREIIAEEE 5 RUWFIA
RUREBERANEENEERR
RIEHEERREH

2019
20194

fE 422

Current (not past due) BIER (R H) 3.5 816,746 (28,913)
Less than 12 months past due  #H3 A 1218 A 12.1 143,505 (17,345)
More than 12 months past due % H38:@ 1218 A 33.8 6,115 (2,065)
966,366 (48,323)

2018

20184F
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
BHIEE X FEaE BREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETTT ARBTIT
Current (not past due) BIER (R ER) 35 448,696 (15,555)
Less than 12 months past due  #H3 A 1218 A 12.4 90,099 (11,168)
More than 12 months past due #5178 :& 1218 A 25.6 3,091 (792)
541,886 (27,515)

138
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition to above provision matrix, the Group has
made individual loss allowance for a certain customer.
As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated individual loss
allowance was RMB686,000 (31 December 2018 :
RMB686,000) with the carrying amounts before loss
allowance of RMB686,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB686,000).

Expected loss rates are based on historical credit loss
experience over the past years or loss rates of
comparable companies with published financials when
there was no sufficient historical experience. These rates
are adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables, bills receivable and contract assets
during the year is as follows:

26

MHEEREERQTEE)

(@)

EERE (&)

Br Ll BB BN AEBEE 5
— BB TERPFIRMERBLE
# o N2019F12A31H - 25t 1@
Rl 18 & 2 {5 5 A R #686,0007C
(2018512 A31H : AR
686,0007T) * BB K EFH R RE
B A AN R #686,0007T (2018412
A318 : AR¥686,0007T) °

BHBBEXRBBEFREESLE
ERABRAKMETEELER
QBT EMBERNTELR
RAMBRRGE - ZFHLERR
BEEBANKERER  ERMRR
RASEEE 5 RKHIA - B
SBERAHNEERFFEIAN
RBERROB AL
BHRYWHE BREERAH
BENBREGRERNFANE
BIERMT

019 2018

EE 20184

B’000 RMB'000

e AR®ET T

Balance at 1 January K118/ &k 28,201 12,056
Impairment losses recognised FAEBRBIEEE

during the year 20,808 16,145

Balance at 31 December R12 A31 B #4564 49,009 28,201
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group’s financial
contractual
date the Group can be required to pay:

liabilities, which are based on
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest

26 EEREERAVHEE)

(b) FRENEER
AEBBRATEREREER
B H R R ERIEKNETIB
noBREBTEENRSHEBR
RANGREBIRTHNAERE
BE - UneEfkEHANRE

TRLERKRBRANRERE
A Ro 7K 5 T B B 4% 28 SR IR SR MY &%
FHBIRE AR BN ®E R
MR AENSTEOBIHIFS:

9 2018
9 20184
0 disco 0 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Carrying
REND ount 0 AURANRELRL amount on
olidated consolidated
0 a 0 0 Within -~ More than 1 More than 2 statements of
0 but le 2 1 year or year but less years but less financial
on demand ota on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total position
NEE VEUR SR 1M E 2L E SRUBHRR
L = B A A EREE 25 LR 5ELR A RAZEAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 B’000 B’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R ¥ R ¥ = = ARBFTT  AREBTT AREBTT ARKTT ARBTL
Trade payables B HERTE 304,871 — — 304,871 304,871 265,884 = = 265,884 265,884
Bills payable BRI 53,787 - — 53,787 53,787 19,851 = = 19,851 19,851
Payables to suppliers of R - BERZ
property, plant and HRERRE
equipment 39,813 — — 39,813 39,813 70,920 — — 70,920 70,920
Payables for acquisition of WA BNFEARES
equipment by ENHE
instalments 22,533 9,495 — 32,028 30,672 31,642 6,287 — 37,929 34,948
Other payables and accruals — E b A FE R fE:H
B 44,315 — — 44,315 44,315 17,180 — — 17,180 17,180
Interest payable e RIS 417 - - 417 417 105 = = 105 105
Obligation for bills endorsed ~ EBREHNEEEHE
with recourse Bff 52,477 — — 52,477 52,477 58,145 = = 58,145 58,145
Amounts due to related FE A R 7 50R
parties - - - - - 13,872 = = 13,872 13,872
Bank loans RITER 58,427 67,577 — 126,004 115,210 125,925 = = 125,925 122,751
Lease liabilities HERE 1,649 375 45 2,069 2,002 2,783 738 420 3,941 3,693
Obligations arising from sale €% MERHEEH
and leaseback £
transactions 4,951 — — 4,951 4,536 10,440 4,951 — 15,391 13,961
583,240 77,447 45 660,732 648,100 616,747 11,976 420 629,143 621,310
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arising primarily from the
bank loans, lease liabilities, payables for acquisition of
equipment by instalments and obligations arising from
sale and leaseback transactions. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk

respectively.

@

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the

reporting period:

26

MHEEREERQTEE)

(c)

A == b

AEBEMREREBZRBRT
ER - -HERE U0 HMAFKE
RENEMNFARERELRR
FEENER - FEHNEREE
FERNEFRD B <A EEHEERR
EREMERER KA EN X

B -

()  FIRER
TRHANAEERFEHR
A A8 SR B A R BEOR, -

g 2018
| 20184
: Effective
interest rate
B R F &
A B’000 % RMB’000
o S % ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEERRMER
Lease liabilities HEAE 6.9 2,002 6.9 3,963
Obligations arising from sale &R®RMEE T HELE
and leaseback K&
transactions 7.2 4,536 7.2 13,961
Bank loans RITER 6.4 44,000 7.2-7.8 57,437
Payables for acquisition of A5 BRf Sk EEA
equipment by instalments &% & A FE < FUA 7.2 30,672 7.2 34,948
81,210 110,309
Variable rate borrowings:  ZENFIREN :
Bank loans RITER 6.8 71,210 5.2-6.1 65,314
Total borrowings ERAEEEE] 152,420 175,623
Fixed rate borrowings as a & & R & ZE
percentage of total B RAEFEH
borrowings Bo 53.3% 62.8%

BRERBRARAT / —2-NFFR
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The Group does not account for any fixed rate
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Therefore, in respect of the fixed rate
instrument, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect the profit or loss.

In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate bank loans held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. As at 31 December 2019,
it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
5% in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB3,026,000 (2018: RMB2,449,000).
The analysis is performed on the same basis as
2018.

(d) Currency risk

The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure
as substantially all the Group’s transactions are
denominated in RMB.

(e) Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26

27

MHEEREERQTER)

(0 FEmEk(HE)

i) WRBE D
AEERA T ABBIBRE
ATEFENEAT LM
B Bk RELTAM
CRE ST ER:REINEIEY

RN AL BRRE R
ENEBHMRBITEREL
MRS RENERRLHKO
REERFLEFERIRBF
MR E R E R R 25 ¥
REEMBENF S BB
AR FE - R2019F128
318 - T FIREE FH 7
N F%5% ¢ 1M FT A H b B E
MR AEETBE RS
KMARB B R L I4
A R #3,026,0007T (2018
& AR #2449,0007T) °
2 MTE2018 5 1Y 0 AT £ Bt
_ﬁ( ®

d) E¥WEE
FAALBHAARSAARME
{8 BAREYEERSERSR -

(e) AF{E
R20194 K 2018512 A31H - &
SEemITANEREREEAQT
BEXEERD R -

BAREE
MN2019512 A318 @ AR BHKT
REHENERENEREAEDT

019 2018
0194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
St ARETTT

Contracted for BEET49

8,110 5,093
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EXBHAERXS

Transactions with the following entities are considered as BTN ERETHNR ZEEEEZE2019

significant related party transactions for the years ended 31 F K% 20184F 12 A31 B L F[E ~ 8= A5

December 2019 and 2018. HRG e

Name of party Relationship

BHER ZRE

Mr. Xun Minghong Controlling Shareholder

B RA S E PERR IR R

Fujian Runjiang Industrial Group Limited (“Fujian Runjiang”)  Entity controlled by the Controlling
(BREARIEXEER/RAAE)” Shareholder

BEREBIEXERERAR (BRI BH 12 AR AR PR R ol ) K B

Mingxin Construction Material Trading Co., Ltd. (Fuzhou Entity controlled by the Controlling

Development Region) (“Mingxin Construction”) (fa/f#%%[&  Shareholder
BEEMESBRAT)*

RNFAERBEEMESBRAR ([REEM]) BR 12 AR AR PR Rl ) K B

Fujian Jianzhong Labour Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Jianzhong Entity controlled by the Controlling
Labour Engineering”) (B2 & ZH S4B TIRBR A aA)* Shareholder

RELERTPEBIREARAR([EREHBIRE]) FR 128 AR AR PR Rl ) K B

Fujian Jianzhong Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. Entity controlled by the Controlling
("Jianzhong Decoration”) (B A EH S5 T2 Shareholder
BRAR)*

RELERPREEHTIRARAR ([BPEEELM]) FR 128 AR AR PR R ol ) K B

Xiapu Jinghai Property Co., Ltd. (“Xiapu Property”) Entity controlled by the Controlling
(BHBEBEERRAT) Shareholder

EHmEBEXEEARAR(ERERE]) TR IR S R E 88

Anhui Conch Venture Investment Co., Ltd. Entity that has significant influence over the
(“Conch Venture Investment”) (Z#UFIREI K E Group
BREMERA)*

ZRBZAEREERBEELR (BREIZEKRE]) HAEEBREATEINER

Conch Venture Henghai Investment (zhuhai) Co.,Ltd. (“Conch Entity controlled by Conch Venture Investment
Venture Henghai”) (8 &l1E 815 & (2K)8) BR A a)*
BEIEERE KE)BRAR ([EBaEE]) HERAIRREZERNER

Conch Venture International Limited (SIRAIZBE AR AR]) Entity controlled by Conch Venture Investment
(“Conch Venture International”)

HIZAIEBEE AR AR ([BRAIZRE]) HERAERETERNER
& The English translation of the companies’ names are for reference @ FHEARGBHNANEREERZ2EY
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. Ao ltERRANARXEBEREERA
18 o
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EXRBEBAXZE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Key management personnel remuneration @ TEEEBAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REEFZEBEAB ZHM (B
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's YRGB ARRRIESE (BERHTE7)
directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain of the RETESHMES (BERME
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as B)RIEEE) AT
follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR¥ET T
Short-term employee benefits RHEB R 3,138 1,830
Contributions to retirement benefit &Kk +&F 5t &) (£ 7%
scheme 27 19
3,165 1,849
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FM@E Al TR (R
5(0)). 5()) e
(b) Related party transactions by BHEXRS
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Purchase of materials from B AT RAE 5 B B MR
— Fujian Runjiang — BEEL 3,393 38,395
Utilities paid/payable to Bt FEf LA T BRESE 75 &9
KE B
— Fujian Runjiang — BEEIL 212 527

Rental expenses paid/payable for &R LA T BEES 75 52 A &
short-term lease of factory and BERHAEEENEN,

office building to FEFEE R
— Fujian Runjiang — BEEL — 964
— Conch Venture Henghai — BEIES 2,471 —
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

28 EXBEBALIXRZ (&)
(b) BELEXZ (&)

019 2018
EE 20184
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBEF T
Revenue received/receivable from M) LA T A 5 AR R A
leasing of construction - RERTEEERN
machinery, equipment and tools B A
to
— Jianzhong Labour Engineering  — ZER &K ITE (2,204) (1,378)
Provision of construction service to A JA T~ BaH 5 f2 (L2 SRR 75
— Xiapu Property — EREX (2,363) (10,092)
Advances from related parties DY=RV N L
— Fujian Runjiang — REHL 22,528 201,764
— Mingxin Construction — BEEM 2,724 52,500
— Mr. Xun Minghong — BB A — 7,400
— Conch Venture International — FIZ A SE BB 720 =
25,972 261,664
Repayments to related parties 8 3% A 5 R
— Fujian Runjiang — RBEEL 29,000 168,300
— Mingxin Construction — AEEM 1,000 51,957
— Mr. Xun Minghong — BB KA 7,400 —
— Conch Venture International — BREEIFER 727 —
38,127 220,257
commercial bills endorsed to MU T BERE
related parties
— Fujian Runjiang — fREET 3,770 27,447
— Mingxin Construction — BIE&EM — 3,763
3,770 31,210
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28 EXRBBALIXS ()

(c) EERFEER W& ER
H20194F K 201812 A31H » &
SEHEBEMHNESRDT

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

receivables from related parties represented
receivables from the provision of foundation work
to Xiapu Property and leasing of certain
construction tools to Jianzhong Labour Engineering.
These transactions were entered into on normal
business terms and the fees charged were
determined with reference to the market price.

Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019

(i) Amounts due from related parties (i) PEWBEAE: S RIE
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Trade-related E 5 a6
Trade receivables B 5 I GRIA
— Xiapu Property — EHEHE — 6,292
— Jianzhong Labour — BREEIRE
Engineering 3,402 1,495
3,402 7,787
Contract assets ABHEE
— Xiapu Property — EHEHE 480 4,033
Other receivables H b g W 5K I8
— Fujian Runjiang — REHIL 1,068 =
— Conch Venture Investment — /BIZAIHEE 300 300
1,368 300
Non-trade related FE S IEHA
Other receivables E {th e Uk 5RIE
— Mingxin Construction — BEEM — 1,724
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the trade R20194F K& 20184 12 A 31

B REBBIHNESER
RERAEREERMME
TREARTS S [ 2 8575 T 72
HHEETEETAEELNE
WKIA - ZEX 5B KRB
EEHRIL - U2 RH(EE
EBE -
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28
(CONTINUED)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(c)

(i)

EXBBAIRS (&)
ELRARE 5 MY A B (AR

Amounts due to related parties FE S BR B 5 7R OH
019 2018
0194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®ET T
Trade related g 5
Trade payables H 5 ENRIA
— Fujian Runjiang — ®BEET — 13
Other payables H h FE 5B
— Fujian Runjiang — REEIT 352 1,871
— Mingxin Construction — REEM 134 —
— Conch Venture Henghai — /8&lk&E & 2,471 —
2,957 1,871
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Fujian Runjiang — REEIL — 1,549
— Mingxin Construction — REEM 1,085 1,093
1,085 2,642
Non-trade related I} E 5 1HE
Other payables H A FE T 508
— Fujian Runjiang — REHT — 6,472
— Mr. Xun Minghong — B RA A — 7,400
— 13,872

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets related to leases from related
parties were RMB331,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,304,000), which were included in the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment in Note
10(ii).

The amounts due from/to related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

MR2019F12A31H @ HE
BrHEEMNERELE
AR E A A R #331,0007T
(2018512 A31H : AR
2,304,0007T) - &t A K&
1062 - BB K& BR
[EEERD

FEW/FE A AR 77 SRIR R
BR RERZBREER -
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

148

(c)

(i)

Amounts due to related parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, payables for acquisition
of equipment by instalments of RMB19,327,000 (31
December 2018: RMB17,390,000) were guaranteed
by Fujian Runjiang.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group entered into some purchase agreements
with guarantees provided by the Controlling
Shareholder of the Group and Jianzhong Decoration
to get more beneficial payment terms. The
maximum guarantee amount was RMB12,000,000.
The Controlling Shareholder and Jianzhong
Decoration agreed that, if the Group failed to fulfil
its obligations to settle, they would make payment
within the maximum guarantee amount. As at 31
December 2019, the aforementioned guarantee has
been released.

Guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholder
and other related parties relating to bank loans and
obligations arising from sale and leaseback
transactions were disclosed in Note 21(a) and Note
21(c) respectively.

Jianzhong Construction Development Limited / Annual Report 2019

28 EXBEBALIXS (&)
EERA IR 5 M A B ()

(c)

(i)

FE 1+ BA Bt O =R 7B (4]
MR2019F12A31H » L&
B BB AR R B IR
B AR®19,327,0007T
(201812 A31H : AR
17,390,0007T) * Bf@EET
REIELR -

RE £2019F12A8318 1E
FE AEERLHE TH
BipEm A EEERER L
RS E IR AR A
BEENNFRIER - ERRE
% A A R #12,000,0007T °
PERR AR 3R MR R RS HE A R
B MAEEREETHRK
E1% 0 HEBEERRERN
{E H 3k - B2019F 12 8
318 » Bl ERE AR o

123 BB BR e At A B U7 A AR
TERRERERRSESE
RE BRI RE 2 B
AE21(a) B M FE21(C) 3 BR -
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FEMBEHRERME
29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29 AGRIEEEBERRE
POSITION
' 0
. 0 4
Note RMB’000
B 5E =
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in a subsidiary REB AR ZI&E —*
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables B FRIE K Ath FE R IR 6,100
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 79
! R 6,179
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary e — M B AR 2 3KIB 6,727
Other payables and accruals Ho i & < 5RIE K B 5T 3R B 416
! A 7,143
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (964)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS (964)
Net liabilities EEFEHE (964)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 25
Share capital A&7 —*
Reserves & (964)
TOTAL EQUITY AR (964)

30

* The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group to be Mr. Xun Minghong.
As at 31 December 2019, the immediate controlling
shareholder of the Group is MHX Investment Limited, which
was incorporated in the BVI and does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

* ZEEBTBETEARE,0007T °
30 EERRARERAL

MN2019F12 A31H - EERAAEEN
BRI R AR BT AE - 20194
128318 AR EEEREKERA
MHX Investment Limited - ER EE R
B S A AL B AR S A] A R AE
B2 BmE -
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31 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

150

(@)

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations
and financial position. The Group has been closely
monitoring the impact of the developments on the
Group’s businesses and has put in place contingency
measures. These contingency measures include:
negotiating with major customers, suppliers and
subcontractors about the arrangements for resumption of
construction works; cutting unnecessary operating
expenses and capital expenditure and deferring the
expansion of the fleet of construction machinery and
equipment. The Group will keep the contingency
measures under review as the situation evolves. As far as
the Group’s businesses are concerned, there were 60
projects on hand being affected and these projects have
been resumed gradually since the end of February 2020.
As the progress of these construction projects was
delayed by about one month, approximately RMB51.9
million of the Group’s revenue which should have been
recognised in February 2020 has been delayed. In
addition, the Group may waive rental fees of leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools to certain
customers of approximately RMB6.3 million depending on
their respective specific circumstances. These may have
consequential impacts on the Group’s revenue for 2020.
The actual impacts may differ from these estimates as
situation continues to evolve and further information may
become available. No adjustments have been made to
the consolidated financial statements in this regard.

In accordance with the shareholders’ resolution of the
Company dated 18 February 2020, the authorised share
capital of the Company has been increased from
39,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each to
2,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each and
the Company allotted and issued 468,740,000 shares on
18 March 2020, credited as fully paid, at par to the
shareholders whose names were on the register of
member of the Company as of the close of business on
13 March 2020.

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued 156,250,000
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each, at a price of
HK$1.65 per share by initial public offering. Gross
proceeds from such issue amounted to HK$257,812,500
before deducting underwriting fees, commissions and
related expenses.
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HERER

(@)

(b)

H2020F I AR IBE N BEARR S
ABAEBMNEZREERTES
THEEEZE WEETAEER
BERUBRR - AEE—EF
P ITEREBERUAEBELHN
FE WO ERIEXER - 2%
EEEMEEIE  BEERF - (fHE
EEkoBEma RERETER
TH B AN ENEERS M
BAR S 0 A E R 4 T i SR LA
B - AEB IR IE BN R
BTHEERESEE A EE
¥%mE A60EFEEE XTI
22 HZFHBEBER2020F2H
RZEZIIME - BRZEELIAR
MEEEEE—EALE At
N FE R 20204 2 A fERH 2N & B U
HEYARBSI 9FETE EER
ot REBEARESHETHE
ERBERMEkRE TEEHAE
BEKE RENTIENEED
ARBE6CIBHETT » &A@ H AR
EB2020F M MAEREKNE
2o i AEILE T3S R LA R AT
RERSE— BN ERyEHE
EETETESEM TR -t
HRERE P HRE AR EE AR -

RiE AR F] B H A202062 A 18
BRBRERZER  AREHET
A% 7 2 % 39,000,000 0% & A%
HmEO.01B THI MR
2,000,000,000 8% & M 1 180.017%8
TR+ BARR AR 2020F3 A
18 B EE MM 202053 138 &
BRI R 5 AN A B AR R 4
HY P 3R iR B % 3% 17468,740,0000%
ABRFIEG R RS

M2020F3 A18H » &KX @l&E B
BHRARBENER.65BTTHE
& %% 17156,250,000% & B% @ &
0.01 B TH&D - R BHEER
BERBERZA  BEETH
FIriS F038 4458 5 257,812,500 7T °
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

32

BZ2019F 128318 LEE

HEZEUBHRENTIEBS &5
BN AEERMEIENEE2019F12 8
31BIEFEEAERE EHARZET T
MR NIRNEEE] - FE1ER R -
ZEEETRIEA T REEAE BB BEH
R -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHR 2%
PSR AER

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a BB ISR

business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition
of material

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts
A=)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or EHEBEREELNFE10HLE LS
ST BN 2858 2 (BET -
RBERNASG A EDEZHE
EMHESLIZA

contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

Cl
E ) Lokt

RIERT2018F H 5 R E B SRR

R 3R 2 EF] -

FEGTENE IR RBEGHE

AIFHRZIER]  EAMESE

FRPEMEEE175

1 January 2020
2020F1A18

1 January 2020
2020F1A18

1 January 2020
2020F1A18

1 January 2020
2020F1A18

To be determined

REZEH FFREE

AREE IE AR & R R HE e %
ERER] FRIEALBRENFE -
BRIAL - HERARMZEMAT LR
HAKEHNREXENVBRARNELE
AFEHNBETK -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last four financial years is set out below:

AEEBENEATRFEZTFOREARE
ENABEHIEINNOT

For the year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

019 2018 2017 2016

019 20184 2017 4 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R ARBFT ARBFT AREFIT

Revenue = 1,578,218 1,192,750 498,857 156,754

Cost of sales $HE R (1,224,195) (907,228) (368,999) (118,618)

Gross profit EF 354,023 285,522 129,858 38,136

Other net income H A )F U A 15,608 1,762 812 336

Administrative expenses TEAX (118,908) (80,820) (25,655) (12,441)

Other operating expenses Bz (25,038) (20,362) (10,016) (2,455)

Profit from operations £ R 225,685 186,102 94,999 23,576

Finance costs b & B A (17,363) (9,121) (5,439) (900)

Profit before taxation Bt A0 A E 208,322 176,981 89,560 22,676

Income tax FriS %t (29,082) (36,487) (22,011) (5,764)

Profit for the year F A FH 179,240 140,494 67,549 16,912
Earnings per share BR W

Basic and diluted (RMB) EARREE(ARE) 0.38 030 NA TEB NA TEB

As at 31 December
M12H31H

019 2018 2017 2016

D19 20184F 20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

K AREFTT ARBFT ARBTT

Total assets BEE 1,562,000 1,244,978 771,495 314,626

Total liabilities FEN=NE (737,868) (687,990) (458,601) (259,281)

Total equity e e 824,132 556,988 312,894 55,345
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